
 
 

NORTHBROOK PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

1201 Cedar Ln., Northbrook, IL  60062 

Regular Monthly Meeting Agenda 

November 15, 2018 at 7:30 p.m. 

 

 

1 Call Regular Meeting to Order  Mr. Carlos Früm 

 

2 Board of Trustees Roll Call  Ms. Jennifer McGee 

 

3 Approval of the Agenda  Mr. Carlos Früm  

 

4 Approval of Minutes  Mr. Carlos Früm 

4.1      Regular Session Minutes  October 18, 2018 

4.2      Special Session Minutes  November 8, 2018, Skokie Library Visit 

 

5 Public Comments 

     

 

6   Ms. Miriam Imrem 

6.1      Review Monthly Financial Statements 

6.2      Approve Bills and Charges from October, 2018 

 

7 Monthly Foundation Report  Ms. Anna Amen 

 

8 Economic Development Committee Report  Mr. Jay Glaubinger 

 

9 Staff Reports  Ms. Kate Hall 

 

10 Unfinished Business 

10.1 Ancel Glink Law Firm Introduction  Britt Isaly  

 

11 New Business 

11.1 Recabling Bids 

11.2 Technical Services and Maintenance Remodel Update  

11.3 FY 19 Per Capita Grant Application Requirements 

11.4 Public Code of Behavior Policy Update 

11.5 Semi-Annual Review of Closed Meeting Minutes 

 

12 Adjourn 

 

FINAL VOTE OR ACTION MAY BE TAKEN AT THE MEETING ON ANY AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT MATTER LISTED 

ABOVE, UNLESS THE AGENDA LINE ITEM SPECIFICALLY STATES OTHERWISE. 

 

The Northbrook Public Library is subject to the Requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Individuals with 

disabilities who plan to attend any meetings of the Board and who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to 

observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of these meetings or the facilities are 

requested to contact Brodie Austin at 847-272-7074 promptly to allow the Northbrook Public Library to make reasonable 

accommodations for those persons.  Hearing impaired individuals may establish TDD contact by calling 847-272-7074. 

Page 1 of 145



NORTHBROOK PUBLIC LIBRARY
CASH BALANCES

10/31/2018

Operating

Total Operating

Capital Improvement

Debt Service

Beginning Ending
Balance Cash Receipts Expenditures Balance

General 8, 597, 099. 23 51,943. 03 521, 359. 36 8, 127, 682. 90
Restricted 270, 745. 83 589. 27 8,591. 33 262, 743. 77

IMRF 504, 562. 67 2,061. 11 30, 701. 07 475, 922. 71
Fica 230, 391. 22 1, 177. 78 22, 128.04 209, 440. 96

$ 9,602, 798. 95 $ 55, 771. 19 $ 582, 779. 80 $ 9,075, 790. 34

$ 1, 009, 876. 34 $

$ 96, 480. 90 $

195. 37 $ 7, 737. 86 $ 1,002, 333. 85

18. 97 $ 96, 499. 87

Cash Detail

NB&T-Checking
ProPay
PayPal

GSB - Money Market
MB - Checking/Money Market

Certificates of Deposit (detail below)
US Bancorp

IMET
Petty Cash

Total

Operating
231, 383. 80

1,750. 46
224, 834. 95

8, 551, 783. 43

638.82
64, 603. 88

795. 00
$ 9,075, 790. 34

Capital
Improvement Debt Service

590. 69 419. 38

946, 454. 39
495. 89

54, 792. 88

92, 329. 81

3, 750. 68

$1,002, 333. 85 $ 96, 499. 87

Amount Rate Term-Days

Certificates of Deposit - Capital Improvements
NBT-16808 $ 946, 454. 39 06/25/19 0. 250% 365

Certificates of Deposit - Debt Service
NBT-16829 $ 92, 329. 81 07/13/19 0.250% 365

NBT = Northbrook Bank & Trust
MB = MB Financial
GSB = Glenview State Bank

IMET = Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund
USB = US Bancorp

Page 2 of 145



01 - G
eneral O

perating Fund
R

e
ve

n
u
e
s

U
ndesignated 

R
evenue

P
roperty T

ax Levy
R

eplacem
ent Tax

Im
pact Fees

F
in

e
s, F

e
e

s &
 R

entals

In
te

re
s
t In

co
m

e

O
th

e
r In

co
m

e

T
otal U

ndesignated R
evenue

D
esignated R

evenue
G

ifts &
 O

ther D
esignated Incom

e
D

esignated Interest Incom
e

T
otal D

esignated R
evenue

T
o

ta
l R

e
ve

n
u
e
s

E
xpenses

U
ndesignated Expenses

M
a
te

ria
ls &

 S
e

rvice
s

M
a
te

ria
ls - B

o
o

ks, A
u
d
io

 V
isu

a
l. M

o
B

o
o
ks

A
u

d
io

 V
isual

V
ideos/D

V
D

s
P

rogram
s

O
C

LC
Interlibrary C

harges
C

C
S

 S
h

a
re

d
 C

o
sts

T
o

ta
l M

a
te

ria
ls &

 S
ervices

H
u

m
a

n
 R

e
so

u
rce

s

G
eneral S

alaries and W
ages

M
aintenance S

alaries 8c W
ages

G
roup Insurance

U
nem

ploym
ent/W

orker'y 
C

om
p

S
taff D

evelopm
ent

T
o

ta
l H

u
m

a
n

 R
esources

N
orthbrook P

ublic Library
In

c
o

m
e

 S
ta

te
m

e
n
t

1
0

/3
1

/1
8

P
Y

 M
onth

$42,170.65
$0.00

$572.13
$9,287.77
$2,651.45
$1,113.90

$55,795.90

$2,225.00
$27.67

$2,252.67

$58,048.57

$71,897.62
$60,177.03

$7,760.41
$3,960.18

$10,806.80
$3,347.47

($1,640.11)
$6,326.90

$90,738.68

$274,939.07
$12,485.09
$37,294.73

$663.10
$5,641.24

$331,023.23

C
Y

 M
o

n
th

$29,891.81
$0.00

$579.70
$3,553.68

$11,959.07
$592.50

$46,576.76

$584.47
$31.41

$615.88

$47,192.64

$66,882.46
$54,405.40

$7,067.48
$5,409.58

$10,550.58
$1,958.14

$0.00
$6,326.90

$85,718.08

$277,529.21
$12,781.10
$42,127.57

$676.98
$1,113.81

$334,228.67

P
Y

Y
T

D

$6,214,473.48
$16,610.80

$2,732.04
$55,994.25
$13,725.38

$1,832.38
$6,305,368.33

$52,398.21
$148.47

$52,546.68

$6,357,915.01

$431,107.21
$371,736.57

$35,171.87
$24,198.77
$78,753.27

$9,251.29
$0.00

$36,376.60
$555,488.37

$1,691,829.33
$73,640.56

$227,181.18
$23,632.59
$26,171.70

$2,042,455.36

C
Y

Y
T

D

$6,984,835.89
$0.00

$2,270.30
$29,700.38
$62,356.72

$1,968.70
$7,081,131.99

$65,177.50
$152.40

$65,329.90

$7,146,461.89

$412,409.81
$346,800.19

$36,360.12
$29,249.50
$66,605.60

$8,041.21
$0.00

$37,961.40
$525,018.02

$1,734,596.68
$76,686.60

$254,101.67
$25,784.91
$31,576.24

$2,122,746.10

C
Y

 B
udget

$7,119,456.00
$100,000.00

to
.oo

$50,000.00
125,000.00

$100,000.00
$7,394,456.00

$100,000.00
$0.00

$100,000.00

$7.4
9

4
,456.00

$907,000.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$132,000.00
$20,000.00

$0.00
$83,000.00

$1,142,000.00

$3,711,018.00
$162,297.00
$550,000.00

$30,000.00
$72,000.00

$4,525,315.00

50%98.11%
0.00%
0.00%

59.40%
249.43%

1.97%
95.76%

65.18%
0.00%

65.33%

95.36%

45.47%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

50.46%
40.21%

0.00%
45.74%
45.97%

46.74%
47.25%
46.20%
85.95%
43.86%
46.91%

Page 3 of 145



O
perating C

osts
P

hotocopy
O

ffice &
 Library Supplies

S
o
ftw

a
re

P
ostage

G
e

n
e

ra
l In

su
ra

n
ce

Telephone/lntem
et

P
ro

fe
ssio

n
a
l S

ervices

Furniture, E
quipm

ent
E

quipm
ent R

ental &
 M

aintenance
C

om
m

unity R
elations

T
otal O

perating C
osts

M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

V
ehicle Expense

Janitorial Supplies
U

tilities

B
uilding R

epairs
C

o
n
tra

cte
d
 S

ervices

T
o

ta
l M

a
in

te
n
a
n
ce

O
ther Expenses
R

ecruiting
C

ontingency &
 M

isc Exp
B

oard D
evelopm

ent
T

otal O
ther Expenses

Total U
ndesignated Expenses

D
esignated E

xpenses
M

iscellaneous D
esignated Expenses

D
esignated M

aterials Expense
D

esignated C
apital Expense

D
esignated P

rogram
 Expense

Total D
esignated Expenses

T
ransfers &

 O
th

e
r F

inancing U
ses

T
ra

n
sfe

r to
 C

IF

T
ra

n
sfe

r to
 D

e
b
t S

ervice

Total Transfers &
 O

ther Financing Uses

T
otal E

xpenses

N
E

T
 S

U
R

P
LU

S
/fD

E
FIC

IT)

N
orthbrook P

ublic Library
In

c
o

m
e

 S
ta

te
m

e
n
t

1
0

/3
1

/1
8

P
Y

 M
o

n
th

$5,091.98
$6,997.87
$2,324.15
$2,450.91

$0.00
$1,407.70

$33,494.78
$1,309.00
$1,820.79

$945.00
$55,842.18

$47.59
$4,068.54
$1,028.57

$750.00
$17,069.95
$22,964.65

($50.00)
$221.02
($132.00)

$39.02

$500,607.76

$185.28
$0.00

($4,070.00)
$2,314.95

($1,569.77)

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$
4

9
9

,037.99

($440,989.42)

C
Y

 M
o

n
th

$3,981.61
$5,424.66

$11,044.70
$6.48

$4,278.00
$778.95

$28,816.67
$3,079.00
$1,990.79
$6,470.83

$65,871.69

$44.53
$6,010.69
$1,588.55

$10,007.28
$4,745.00

$22,396.05

($30.00)
$560.82

$0.00
$530.82

$508,745.31

$3,924.36
$0.00
$0.00

$4,666.97
$8,591.33

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$517,336.64

($470,
144.00)

P
Y

Y
T

D

$22,772.84
$26,410.20
$51,009.89
$20,204.57
$51,447.37

$4,149.61
$128,790.79

$11,643.18
$15,591.14
$21,052.73

$353,072.32

$575.10
$13,387.37
$10,258.74

$2,580.50
$58,344.25
$85,145.96

$220.00
$1,807.10

$660.50
$2,687.60

$3,038,849.61

$37,999.46
$38.10

$1,490.00
$11,966.06
$51,493.62

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$3,0
9

0
,343.23

$3,267,571.78

C
Y

Y
T

D

t2
9

.250.47
$32,582.67
$55,660.48
$15,278.34
$37,987.88

$4,870.11
$134,695.65

$47,804.05
$4,513.05

$27,017.65
$389,660.35

$139.93
$19,519.32
$26,088.25
$15,201.28
$56,976.35

$117,925.13

$198.00
$2,232.91

$0.00
$2,430.91

$3,157,780.51

$18,053.75
$1,148.97
$3,315.53

$15,210.96
$37,729.21

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$
3

,195,509.72

$3,950,952.17

C
Y

 B
udget

$58,000.00
$70,000.00
$95,000.00
$20,000.00
$60,000.00
$15,000.00

$260,000.00
$160,000.00

$25,000.00
$49,000.00

$812,000.00

$2,500.00
$45,000.00
$50,000.00
$30,000.00

$126,000.00
t2

5
3

,500.00

$500.00
$100,000.00

$3,500.00
$104,000.00

$6,836,815.00

$100,000.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$100,000.00

$532,000.00
$25,000.00

$557,000.00

$7,493,815.00

$
6

4
1

.0
0

50%50.43%
46.55%
58.59%
76.39%
63.31%
32.47%
51.81%
29.88%
18.05%
55.14%
47.99%

5.60%
43.38%
52.18%
50.67%
45.22%
46.52%

39.60%
2.23%
0.00%
2.34%

46.
19%

18.05%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

37.73%

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

42.64%

6
1
6
3
7
3
.1

9
%

Page 4 of 145



0
2
 - IM

R
F

/F
IC

A
 F

und
R

e
ve

n
u

e
s

U
ndesignated R

evenue
P

roperty T
ax Levy-IM

R
F

P
roperty T

ax Levy FIC
A

In
te

re
st In

co
m

e
 IM

R
F

In
te

re
st In

co
m

e
 F

IC
A

T
otal U

ndesignated R
evenue

T
o
ta

l 
R

e
ve

n
u

e
s

E
xpenses

U
ndesignated Expenses

H
u
m

a
n
 

R
e

so
u

rce
s

E
m

ployer IM
R

F
E

m
ployer FIC

A
T

o
ta

l H
um

an R
esources

Total U
ndesignated Expenses

T
otal E

xpenses

N
E

T
 SU

R
PLU

S/fD
EFIC

iT)

P
Y

 M
o
n
th

$3,124.48
$1,776.02

$4.17
$2.37

$4,907.04

$4,907.04

$29,186.98
$21,367.44
$50,554.42

$50,554.42

$50,554.42

($45,647.38)

N
orthbrook P

ublic Library
In

c
o
m

e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t

1
0
/3

1
/1

8
C

Y
 M

o
n

th

$2,057.32
$1,175.61

$3.79
$2.17

$3,238.89

$3,238.89

$30,701.07
$22,128.04
$52,829.11

$52,829.11

$52,829.11

($49,590.22)

P
Y

Y
T

D

$460,439.06
$261,723.27

$16.75
$9.52

$722,188.60

$722,188.60

$177,827.24
$131,610.98
$309,438.22

$309,438.22

$309,438.22

$412,750.38

C
Y

Y
T

D

$466,897.00
$266,798.30

$32.90
$18.80

$733,747.00

$733,747.00

$184,352.96
$134,032.67
$318,385.63

$318,385.63

$318,385.63

$415,361.37

C
Y

 B
udget

$490,000.00
$270,000.00

$50.00
$50.00

$760,100.00

$760,100.00

$490,000.00
$280,000.00
$770,000.00

$770,000.00

$770,000.00

($9,900.00)

5
0

%95.29%
98.81%
65.80%
37.60%
96.53%

96.53%

37.62%
47.87%
41.35%

41.35%

41.35%

(4195.57%
)|

Page 5 of 145



0
3

 - C
apital Im

provem
ents Fund

R
e

ve
n

u
e

s

U
ndesignated R

evenue
In

te
re

st In
co

m
e

T
otal U

ndesignated R
evenue

Transfers &
 O

ther Financing Sources
In

su
ra

n
ce

 P
ro

ce
e

d
s

Total Transfers &
 O

ther Financing Sources

T
o
ta

l 
R

e
ve

n
u

e
s

E
xpenses

U
ndesignated Expenses

C
apital P

rojects &
 B

ond Expenses
R

enovation/R
epair

P
rofessional Fees

Furniture &
 E

quipm
ent

C
ontingency

Total C
apital &

 B
ond Expenses

Total U
ndes'gnated Expenses

T
otal E

xpenses

N
E

T
 S

U
R

P
LU

S
/fD

E
FIC

IT)

P
Y

 M
o
n
th

$273.62
$273.62

$5,180.00
$5,180.00

$5,453.62

$39,261.64
$8,631.62

$0.00
$66.15

$47,959.41

$47,959.41

$47,959.41

($42,505.79)

N
orthbrook P

ublic Library
In

c
o
m

e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t

1
0
/3

1
/1

8
C

Y
 M

o
n
th

$195.37
$195.37

$0.00
$0.00

$195.37

$0.00
$7,616.36

$0.00
$121.50

$7,737.86

$7,737.86

$7,737.86

($7,542.49)

P
Y

Y
T

D

$1,533.65
$1,533.65

$5,180.00
$5,180.00

$6,713.65

$54,677.64
$31,415.27

$0.00
$66.15

$86,159.06

$86,159.06

$86,159.06

($79,445.41)

C
Y

Y
T

D

$1,155.56
$1,155.56

$0.00
$0.00

$1,155.56

$175.00
$9,166.50

$0.00
$248.40

$9,589.90

$9,589.90

$9,589.90

($8,434.34)

C
Y

 B
udget

$2,000.00
$2,000.00

$0.00
$0.00

$2,000.00

$693,000.00
$105,000.00

$52,000.00
$0.00

$850,000.00

$850,000.00

$850,000.00

($848,000.00)

50%57.78%

57.78%

0.00%
0.00%

57.78%

0.03%
8.73%
0.00%
0.00%
1.13%

1.13%

1.13%

0.99%

Page 6 of 145



0
5

 - D
e

b
t S

e
rvice

 F
u
n
d

R
e

ve
n

u
e

s

U
ndesignated R

evenue
P

roperty T
ax Levy

In
te

re
st In

co
m

e

T
otal U

ndesignated R
evenue

T
o
ta

l 
R

e
ve

n
u

e
s

E
xpenses

U
ndesignated Expenses

C
apital P

rojects &
 B

ond Expenses
Interest P

aym
ents

P
rincipal Paym

ents
Total C

apital &
 B

ond Expenses

Total U
ndes!gnated Expenses

T
otal E

xpenses

N
E

T
 S

U
R

P
LU

S
/(D

E
FiC

IT)

P
Y

 M
o
n
th

$6,685.87
$77.50

$6,763.37

$6,763.37

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$6,763.37

N
orthbrook P

ublic Library
In

c
o
m

e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t

1
0
/3

1
/1

8
C

Y
 M

o
n
th

$553.95
$23.05

$577.00

$577.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$577.00

P
Y

Y
T

D

$985,262.06
$356.73

$985,618.79

$985,618.79

$145,175.85
$0.00

$145,175.85

$145,175.85

$145,175.85

$840,442.94

C
Y

Y
T

D

$503,235.89
$160.52

$503,396.41

$503,396.41

$138,030.55
$0.00

$138,030.55

$138,030.55

$138,030.55

$365,365.86

C
Y

 B
udget

$528,137.00
$1,000.00

$529,
137.00

$529,137.00

$276,061.00
$252,076.00
$528,137.00

$528,137.00

$528,137.00

$1,000.00

50%95.29%
16.05%
95.14%

95.14%

50.00%
0.00%

26.14%

26.14%

26.14%

36536.59%

Page 7 of 145



Northbrook Public Library
Bills, Charges and Transfers for Board of Trustee Approval

Month of October 2018

Operating Funds
Library Claims List
Librarian's Claims List

Payroll
Fica/IMRF
ACH to IPBC
Total Operating Funds

Capital Improvement Fund
Claims List

$

$

$

170,260.68
18,396.74

286, 857. 41
52,829. 11
54,435.86

582,779.80

7,737.86

Debt Service Fund

Grand Total Library $ 582,779.80

11/7/2018 10:15 AM Bill Approval 19

Page 8 of 145



Northbrook Public Library
Bank Register Report

Northbrook Bank & Trust General Checking

Transaction Transaction
Number Date Reference Payments Description

24907 10/16/2018 I First Bankcard $3,419. 71 montlhy payment credit card

24908 10/16/2018 Limricc Unemployment Comp. Group Account $676. 98 quarterly unemployment
contribution

24909 10/16/2018 Olga Rucfiak $600.00 programming
24910 10/17/2018 Cloudbakers $8,000.00 annual gmail subscription
24911 10/31/2018 Amazon $3, 016. 03 monthly payment amazon
24912 10/31/2018 American Electric $2,875.00 janrtorial supplies
24913 10/31/2018 American Library Association, Membership $805. 00 staff development
24914 10/31/2018 Baker &Taylor $29, 488. 04 monthly payment material
24915 10/31/2018 Baker & Taylor Entertainment $1, 156.25 monthly payment material
24916 10/31/2018 Best Quality Cleaning $4, 680. 00 monthly payment cleaning
24917 10/31/2018 Bibliotheca. LLC. $2, 588. 57 monthly payment material
24918 10/31/2018 CallOne $772. 95 monthly payment telephone
24919 10/31/2018 CenterPoint Energy Services, Inc. $1,038.79 monthly gas bill

24920 10/31/2018 Cooperative Computer Service $8,285. 04 monthly payment consortium &
OCLC

24921 10/31/2018 Criterion Pictures $805.00 programming
24922 10/31/2018 Demco, Inc. $1, 317. 80 supplies

24923 10/31/2018 Discovery Benefits, Inc. $3,291.36
monthly payment flexible
spending, dedendant care and
commuter benefit

24924 10/31/2018 Dornfeld Piano Tuning $870.00 quateHy piano tuning
24925 10/31/2018 ECO Promotional Products, Inc. $1,392. 32 programming

24926 10/31/2018 F. E. Moran Mechanical Services $1,879.92 HVAC work
24927 10/31/2018 F. E. Moran, Inc. $6,635. 00 ire sprinkler work

24928 10/31/2018 Faronics Technologies USA Inc. $814.80
annual deep freeze subscription

24929 10/31/2018 Fast Signs $1, 877. 69 clearance signs
24930 10/31/2018 Flybrix $916. 00 equipment
24931 10/31/2018 Gale/CENGAGE Learning $961.25 monthly payment material
24932 10/31/2018 Garvey's Office Products $728. 12 supplies

24933 10/31/2018 General Binding Corp. $700. 79 annual maintenance agreement
for laminator

24934 10/31/2018 Urainger $863. 21 anitorial supplies
24935 10/31/2018 Solisti, MYAC $750. 00 programming
24936 10/31/2018 llinois Library Association $650. 00 itaff development

24937 10/31/2018 mpact Networking LLC $772. 11 monthly payment copier
maintenance

24938 0/31/2018 nternational Children's Media Center $750. 00 programming
24939 0/31/201S Library Furniture International, Inc. $1, 765. 00 urniture

24940 0/31/2018 Vlidwest Tape $8,203.39 monthly payment material
24941 0/31/2018 ^FIP Direct Servicing Agent $4,278.00 nnual flood insurance
24942 0/31/2018 Morth American $673. 15 anitorial supplies
24943 0/31/2018 Outsource Solutions Group, Inc. $17, 166. 67 monthly payment IT services
24944 0/31/2018 Overdrive $760.45 monthly payment material
24945 0/31/2018 'etersen Bros. Plastics, Inc. $1,355.00 .applies
24946 0/31/2018 roquest $9, 898. 00 nnualABI/lnform Database

24947 0/31/2018 ryor Learning Solutions, Inc. $798. 00 >taff development
24948 0/31/2018 iecorded Books, Inc. $7,925. 87 nnual Zinio Platform
24949 0/31/2018 Olga Rudiak $750.00 'rog ramming

24950 0/31/2018 tunco Office Supply $1, 190. 68 .applies
24951 0/31/2018 elden Fox, LTD $10, 350. 00 nnual audit fee
24952 0/31/2018 HI International Corp. $766. 98 upplies
24953 0/31/2018 .tackMap LLC $1,099.00 nnual subscription to StackMap
'4954 0/31/2018 wank Motion Pictures Inc. $1,741.00 Togramming

4955 0/31/2018 'is-0-Graphic, inc. $5, 183. 94 imonthly newsletter
4956 10/31/2018 Veils Fargo Vender Fin Serv S1, 752. 00 monthly payment copier lease

4957 10/31/2018 (erox Corporation $1,225. 82 monthly payment copier lease SE
maintenance

$170,260.68

Page 9 of 145



Transaction

Number

Northbrook Public Library
Bank Register Report

Northbrook Bank & Trust Librarian Checking

Transaction

Date Reference Payments

48429 9/18/2018 VOID - Theresa Cichocki $ (150.00)
48450 9/18/2018 VOID - Helen Lazzaro $ (230.00)
48475 9/28/2018 VOID - Alert Protective Services $ (105. 00)
48513 10/15/2018 Neil Adelman $50.00
48514 10/15/2018 Advanced Disposal ^54976
48515 10/15/2018 Algonquin Public Library $7.42
48516 10/15/2018 Anna Amen $25^51
48517 10/15/2018 American Indian Association of Illinois $300.00
48518 10/15/2018 Andrepont Piano Sen/ice $420. 00
48519 10/15/2018 Zbigniew Banas $250. 00
48520 10/15/2018 Christine Casey $50.00
48521 10/15/2018 Theresa Cichocki $150.00
48522 10/15/2018 Sandra Cotler $52. 50
48523 10/15/2018 Crystal Lake Public Library $34.95
48524 10/15/2018 Des Plaines Public Library $66.99
48525 10/15/2018 Discovery Benefits - Simplify Tnuio
48526 10/15/2018 Kelly Durov $358. 15
48527 10/15/2018 Ela Area Public Library District $30. 16
48528 10/15/2018 Evanston Public Library $61.01
48529 10/15/2018 Federal Express $92.22
48530 10/15/2018 For the Love of Tidy $250. 00
48531 10/15/2018 Fox River Valley Public Library $42.94
48532 10/15/2018 Freemont Public Library $54.99
48533 10/15/2018 Mark Gelfeld $200.00
48534 10/15/2018 Mark Gelfeld $100.00
48535 10/15/2018 Glencoe Public Library $116.00
48536 10/15/2018 Glenview Public Library T66. 92
48537 10/15/2018 Bridget Golembiewski $39.00
48538 10/15/2018 Benjamin Goluboff $250. 00
48539 10/15/2018 HodgePodge $170.00
48540 10/15/2018 Matthew Hoffman -$256.00
48541 10/15/2018 Huntley Area Public Library $95.00
48542 10/15/2018 Janus Films $350. 00
48543 10/15/2018 Alisa Kusnitzow $125.00
48544 10/15/2018 Laconi $225.00
48545 10/15/2018 Helen Lazzaro $115.00
48546 10/15/2018 Terrence Lynch ^275700
48547 10/15/2018 Ron Mantegna $200.00
48550 10/15/2018 Diego Morales $80.00
48551 10/15/2018 Rachel Murguia $75.00
48552 10/15/2018 Niles-Maine Public Library $30.01
48553
48554

10/15/2018 Old Town School of Folk Music
10/15/2018 Old Town School of Folk Music

$300.00
$375. 00

48555 10/15/2018 Helena Osorio -$400.00
48556 10/15/2018 Helena Osorio $200. 00
48557 10/15/2018 A/illiam Pack $300.00
48558 10/15/2018 'etty Cash Custodian S158. 68
48559 10/15/2018 Sarah Rustman $47.40
48560 10/15/?018 Erin Seeger $76. 97
48561 10/15/2018 oseph R. Skibbie $150.00
48562 10/15/2018 sabel Soffer $175. 00
48563 10/15/2018 unset Food Mart, Inc. $29. 91
48565 10/15/2018 Universal Film Exchanges LLC $300.00
48566 10/15/2018 Barbara Wagner $112.47
48567 10/15/2018 A/innetka Public Library ~$12Z82
48568 10/15/2018 Susan Merctinger $400. 00
48569 10/15/2018 >usan Merdinger $500.00
48570 10/15/2018 Cathleen Jo Zeigler Mitchem $400.00
48571 10/15/2018 Cathleen Jo Zeigler Mitchem $200.00

Page 10 of 145



Northbrook Public Library
Bank Register Report

Northbrook Bank & Tmst Librarian Checking

Transaction

Number

Transaction

Date Reference Payments
48572 10/31/2018 Acris Project $100. 00
48573 10/31/2018 Advanced Auto Parts $23.98
48574 10/31/2018 American Library Association - Training $166. 50
48575 10/31/2018 Aw Yeah Comics $128. 67
48576 10/31/2018 Center Point Publishing $46. 74
48577 10/31/2018 Chicago Tribune $266. 50
48578 10/31/2018 CleanTools Company/Emgee $86. 11
48579 10/31/2018 Sandra Cotler $52. 50
48580 10/31/2018 Displays2Go $53.38
48581 10/31/2018 Electron inks $210.00
48582 10/31/2018 Flying Fox Conservation Fund $250. 00
48583 10/31/2018 Fun Express, LLC $197.51
48584 10/31/2018 Abigail Geni $200.00
48585 10/31/2018 Haines & Company, Inc. $463. 50
48586 10/31/2018 Healthy Life Magazine $20.00
48587 10/31/2018 The Home Depot Credit Sen/ices $173. 23
48588 10/31/2018 Hugger Mugger $278. 13
48589 10/31/2018 Image Specialties ofGlenview, Inc. $19.80
48590 10/31/2018 Inventables $183. 10
48591 10/31/2018 Janus Films $350. 00
48592 10/31/2018 Johnson Plastics Plus $54. 05
48593 10/31/2018 Laconi $25.00
48594 10/31/2018 La coni $100.00
48595 10/31/2018 La Force $560.00
48596 10/31/2018 Leadership Directories, Inc. $495. 00
48597 10/31/2018 Lechner & Sons $215. 40
48598 10/31/2018 Library Juice Academy $175. 00
48599 10/31/2018 MakerBot Industries, LLC $317.00
48600 10/31/2018 Modular Robotics $187. 70
48601 10/31/2018 Neuco Inc. $371. 05
48602 10/31/2018 Northbrook Hardware $61. 64
48603 10/31/2018 Penguin Random House LLC 423. 751

48604 10/31/2018 Pixel Press Technology, LLC $272.50
48605 43404 Reds Garden Center $63.00
48606 43404 RobotShop Inc. $38.99
48607 43404 Rotary Club of Northbrook $265.00
48608 43404 Sage Publications, Inc. $266. 54
48609 43404 Sheet Music Plus $15.82
48610 43404 Shell Fleet Plus $44.53
48611 43404 rhomson Reuters -West Payment Ctr. $275.03
48612 43404 oday's Business Solutions, Inc. $231. 68
48613 43404 "rashcans Unlimited, LLC $121.06
48614 43404 sai Fong Books, Inc. $48.95
48615 43404 UPS $21.48
48616 43404 \/emon Library Supplies Inc. $315. 18
48617 43404 Brian Wilson $125.00
48618 43404 /Yemen's Health $16.94
48619
48620

43404
43404

/ami Vending Inc.
Lauren Zmija

$387. 07
$150.00

$ 18,396. 74

Page 11 of 145



Northbrook Public Library
Bank Register Report

Northbrook Bank & Trust Capital Improvements

Transaction Transaction

Number Date Reference Payments Description

1673 10/31/2018
Ancel, Glink, Diamond, Bush, Dicianni &
Krafthefer. P. C.

$838.75
attorney fees

1674 10/31/2018 Klein, Thorpe, Jenkins LTD. $1, 702. 40 attorney fees

1675 10/31/2018 Paddock Publications $121. 50 newspaper ad for cabling
project

1676 10/31/2018 Product Architecture + Design $5, 075. 21
architecture fees for TS &
Maintenance renovation

$7,737. 86

Page 12 of 145



Month to Date Year to Date

Income

Unrestricted Donations

Brick Donations 600.00                 

Auditorium Chair Donations 500.00                 500.00                 

Individual Donations

Corporate Donations

Organizations Donations

HodgePodge Donation

Amazon Smile Donations 40.89                   146.13                 

Total Unrestricted Donations 540.89                 1,246.13              

Interest Income-Unrestricted 8.18                     46.55                   

Total Income 549.07                 1,292.68              

Expense

Bank Fee

Brick Expenses 180.00                 

Chair Expenses 7.00                     7.00                     

Filing Fee 28.00                   

Grant Transfer to NPL

Postage

Professional Fees

Software Expense

Special Event Expense

Total Expense 7.00                     215.00                 

Net Income 542.07                 1,077.68              

Auditorium Chairs Available for Sale 218

Auditorium Chairs Sold through October 2018 46

Remaining Auditorium Chairs for Sale 172

Percent Sold 21%

24 x 24 Bricks Available for Sale 74

24 x 24 Bricks Sold through October 2018 74

Remaining 24 x24 Bricks Available for Sale 0

Percent Sold 100%

12 x 12 Bricks Available for Sale 1057

12 x 12 Bricks Sold through October 2018 843

Remaining 12 x 12 Bricks Available for Sale 214

Percent Sold 80%

ASSETS

Current Assets

Checking/Savings

MB Financial - Checking 1,371.42              

MB Financial - Money Market 48,153.33            

Total Checking/Savings 49,524.75            

Accounts Receivable

Due from NPL

Total Accounts Receivable -                       

Total Current Assets 49,524.75            

TOTAL ASSETS 49,524.75            

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Equity

Retained Earnings 48,447.07            

Net Income 1,077.68              

Total Equity 49,524.75            

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 49,524.75            

Northbrook Public Library Foundation

Financial Statements

October-18

Income Statement

Balance Sheet

Page 13 of 145



 
 
Agenda Items 
10 Unfinished Business 

10.1  Ancel Glink Law Firm Introduction  Britt Isaly  
 Britt Isaly, our new attorney, will join us at the meeting to introduce himself.   

 

11 New Business 
11.1 Recabling Bids 

We will be presenting the bid recommendation to the board from the recabling project.  A memo 
and supporting documentation is included in the packet.  
 

11.2 Technical Services and Maintenance Remodel Update  
In advance of the bid going out, we have preliminary information on the Technical Services and 
Maintenance remodel project that are included in the packet. 
 

11.3 FY 19 Per Capita Grant Application Requirements 
The board will review the annual requirements for the Per Capita Grant.  A memo and supporting 
documentation is included in the packet.  
 

11.4 Public Code of Behavior Policy Update 
We have a recommended change to the policy.  A draft is included in the packet along with a 
memo.  
 

11.5 Semi-Annual Review of Closed Meeting Minutes 
The minutes are included in your packet.  The board reviews the closed session minutes every 6 
months to determine whether there are any minutes they would like to open. 
 

Board News 
I will be on vacation in Scotland from Nov 26-December 7.   
 

reimbursement for the visit to Skokie Public Library. If you let Jennifer 
know the mileage, she can fill out the forms for you.   
 

 
Fiction & Media  

eaturing senior Benefits 
Advisor Mike Altman, was held on October 4th. Attendees commented that they appreciated having the 
opportunity to talk to someone directly about their questions and concerns, especially when enrolling in 
Medicare involves such important decisions.  
 

Staff have seen a growing interest in the collection, including a woman who called on October 3 asking about 
the newer titles in the vinyl collection. The caller said she would be coming in to not only check out the 
collection, but this would be the reason why she would sign up for a library card. In response to recent interest, 
staff have arranged the collection to highlight the newer and most popular LPs for easier browsing, and are 
actively purchasing new titles based on demand. 

 

Page 14 of 145



Reference   
Reference question: We have received many questions related to voting and November election. One more 
unusual request came from a patron looking for the form she needed to send in to Florida for a mail-in ballot to 
be sent to her here in Northbrook. We found the form and scanned it, and she was relieved to have this 

 

 
Youth Services   
Film Craft Month Kicked off in October and featured two programs for youth. 
On October 3 we presented Pizza Green Screen which Bridget Golembiewski 
designed and led. On October 22, presenter Laura Zmija taught tweens and 
teens about movie make-up in the program Monstrous Movie Make-up. 
Bridget coordinated this event.  
 

our community for coding programs that did not require as long of a time 
commitment as Girls Who Code and where younger participants of all genders 
could attend. We have been working with Helen Lazzaro, a retired middle 
school teacher, to develop coding program for children. Our first event, Tinker: 
Drones and Bots was on October 6. Sara Chase was instrumental in planning 

this event with Helen.  
 
Our October 14, Accessibility Hour featured Mane 
in Heaven Therapy Horses. We had 50 people attend our Accessibility Hour with 
miniature horses. Accessibility Hour allow patrons who might be intimidated by our 
regular opening time bustle to visit the library one hour before the library opens. It 
provides a quieter, more sensory friendly environment than during our regular hours.  
Sarah Rustman coordinated this event.  
 
Youth Services staff collaborated to present StoryFest Halloween on Friday, October 
26 StoryFest. We added a new Adopt a Pet Ghost station and Ghost Trial to this 
annual favorite. Expand and deepen community-centered initiatives and 
partnerships. 
 

Expand and Deepen Community Centered Initiatives and Partnerships 
Reference 
Jill Franklin hosted a Green Team program in partnership with Go Green Northbrook: Detox from Everyday 
chemicals on October 8. The total attendance was 45 and Jill noted that this program brought in more people in 
the 35-54 age group than usual. 
 

Youth Services 
d Little 

Free Library on October 2.  Techny Prairie Park will be the new site. The Teen Advisory Board will be decorating 
the new Little Free Library in November and the Little Free Library should be installed in late November/early 
December.  
 
On October 15, Sarah Rustman met with Total Link 2 Community to talk about expanding our community 
partnership with this group that works closely with young adults who have disabilities.   

Page 15 of 145



 

i 
coordinated this event.  

 
Fiction & Media 
Library staff met with community members in late September to discuss creating a One Book, One Community 
event for Northbrook. Participants were excited that the library would spearhead this project, and were happy to 
hear from staff members such as Susan Wolf and Kelly Durov who have been involved in previous One Book 
events. Community members at the meeting included Community Relations commissioners. The Commission 
has agreed to support a One Book, One Community event from the library. The group will now begin working 
on a program proposal, reaching out to local schools, and discussing potential book titles for the first event, with 
the goal of Summer 2019. 
 
Staff member Aaron Ashmann planned and led a Tarkovsky Film Fest in conjunction with the library-wide Film 
Craft Month events. After seeing promotion of the event, the son of a Northbrook resident Grigoriy Verkhovski 
contacted library staff. Amazingly, Mr. Verkhovski had worked as a camera operator on one of the Tarkovsky 

not speak English, he attended the screening and communicated with staff through his wife and son. The library 
was able to obtain personal images and books from the family for a display, including photographs taken on set 

included here. 

 
Innovate and improve based on usage, needs, and trends 

 

patrons scheduling appointments for help with their Facebook business or 
group pages. Facebook recently changed their algorithm for the news feed 
so that people tend to see more posts from their friends and family, while 
seeing fewer posts from pages. While this change addresses a real problem, 
it may exacerbate an already challenging situation for community pages and 
businesses trying to reach people who like their pages. Nieman Lab has an 
interesting read on the situation here. 
 
Based on input from the Trends Committee, which met in October, Mike 
Hominick is working on the idea of adding a staff picks display in the first-
floor lobby, which would feature titles chosen by all library staff. Mike has 
met with the Circulation Manager to discuss location, and will soon be 
speaking with the Assistant Director to follow up on the project. 

 
Digital Services staff have been preparing samples for holiday gift ideas.  We 
anticipate a large turnout in the Collaboratory in November and December.   

 

Build a high capacity organizational infrastructure 
New Hires 

 Jennifer McGee, regular part-time Administrative Assistant (Administration) started on October 1. 

 Madison Carroll, full-time Librarian  Librarian - Classical Music (Fiction & Media) started on October 1. 

 Cedric Wilder, full-time Graphic Designer (Administration) started on October 16. 

Page 16 of 145

http://www.niemanlab.org/2018/10/yes-facebook-referral-traffic-crashed-and-burned-but-not-for-these-nonprofit-publishers/


 
Terminations/Retirements 
(Terminations refer to all persons leaving library employment for any reason, including resignations and 
retirements) 
 

 Sidney Barnes, full-time Supervisor (Circulation) last day was October 5. She accepted a full-time non-
library job closer to her home. 

 Matt Kohn, part-time Shelver (Circulation) employment ended October 24.  

 Ethan Fardoux, regular part-time Clerk (Circulation) last day was October 30. He accepted a promotion 
and more hours at his other library job. 

 

Illinois Library Association Annual Conference 
Kate Hall, Maggie Thomann, Kelly Durov, and Mike Hominick 
Purpose hers about what it 
means to lead.   
 
We had a number of staff give presentations at ILA:  

 Brodie Austin presented 
 

 

talked about our Tabletop Gaming programming series.  

 

discussed our telecommuting policy. 

 

 

  priorities and 
 

 
Staff shared what they took away from the conference:  

that we are doing a lot for our patrons, but there are ways we can do more. I was most interested with how CEL 
(Center for Enriched Living) partners with Deerfield Library to have a job/volunteer program. This helps me 
better craft our program for our NSSED student  
 

accomplishments at the ILA conference and involvement in our state-wide association. Being active in ILA allows 
us to learn what other libraries and librarians in our state are doing, connect with colleagues, and share ideas. I 

gend
in guiding my own leadership development. Thanks to the Board for the opportunity to be involved with the ILA 

 
 
Laurie Prioletti said, Thank you for the opportunity to attend the Illinois Library Association (ILA) Annual 
Conference in Peoria, IL October 9  11. The sessions were very useful and informative and it was particularly 
beneficial to meet, make connections with and learn from colleagues at other libraries. I was fortunate to be part 

 
 

At the core of what I took away from the Illinois Library Association 
conference was that increasing our compassion and patience will create a welcoming environment and grow our 

 
 

 

Page 17 of 145



Maintain a secure, sustainable, and well-resourced library 
The insurance company recommended that we perform an asset valuation to ensure that we have adequate 
insurance coverage.  Gallagher Basset was hired to complete the valuation.  We received the final report this 
month and will be sharing the report with our insurance company.  We determined that we were underinsured 
and anticipate the cost of our insurance going up next year to ensure we have adequate coverage.  
 
CCS has applied for and received a RAILS support grant to help fund the consortium.  This funding, 
approximately $150,000 will be used to offset CCS costs and will be used to offset what each of the member 
libraries pays.   

 
The federal budget includes some important funding increases for the Institute of Museum and Library Services 
and other departments that will be very beneficial to libraries. Below is from the ILA E-News:  

 
On the Federal level, we are continuing to advocate for more Senators and Representatives to co-
sponsor the Museum and Library Services Act. Right now it has 17 Senate co-sponsors and 4 House co-
sponsors, but NONE yet from Illinois! We urge everyone to contact Senators Duckworth and Durbin, and 
your Representative, to ask them to co- sponsor S3530 and HR6988, respectively. The MLSA has 
bipartisan support so far, which is reflective of libraries' importance to both sides of the aisle, but more 
co-sponsors are needed if MSLA is to advance in Congress this session. It is important to reauthorize 
MLSA in order to insulate IMLS and LSTA from future funding cuts, and codify Federal support for 
libraries.  

 
To learn more, you can read this article: Federal Budgets include Big Gains for Libraries. 
I have contacted our legislators asking them to co-sponsor these bills. I hope you will consider contacting our 
representatives as well 

U.S. Senator Dick Durbin 
Phone: 312-353-4952 
View the website of U.S. Senator Dick Durbin 
 
U.S. Senator Tammy Duckworth 
Phone: 202-224-2854 
View the website of U.S. Senator Tammy Duckworth 
 
U.S. Representative Jan Schakowsky 
9th Congressional District 
(Eastern Portion of Northbrook) 
Phone: 847-328-3409 
View the website of U.S. Representative Jan Schakowsky 
 
U.S. Representative Bradley Schneider 
10th Congressional District 
(Western Portion of Northbrook) 
Phone: 847-383-4870 
View the website of U.S. Representative Bradley Schneider 
 
 
 
Kate Hall 
Executive Director 
 
  

Page 18 of 145

https://americanlibrariesmagazine.org/blogs/the-scoop/federal-budget-includes-big-gains-libraries/
https://www.durbin.senate.gov/
https://www.duckworth.senate.gov/
https://schakowsky.house.gov/
https://schneider.house.gov/


 
Prepared by: Cathleen Doyle  
October, 2018 
 

  

Page 19 of 145



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Material Items Machine 

3D Printing 17 3D Printer 

Acrylic 16 Laser Cutter 

Buttons 45 Button Makers 

Cardstock 22 Cricut 

Cork Coasters 0 Laser Cutter 

DVDs 0 Digitization Room 

Embroidery Thread 10 Embroidery Machine 

Glasses 12 Laser Cutter 

HDPE 6 Carvey 

Iron-on 0 Cricut 

Keychains 0 Button Makers 

Sewing Thread 0 Sewing Machines 

Stamp Block 1 Carvey 

Stabilizer Sheets 10 Embroidery Machine 

Vinyl & Transfer 
Paper 

0 Cricut 

Wood 17 Laser Cutter & Carvey 

 156  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 20 of 145



 

 
 

Memorandum 

 

DATE: November 8, 2018  
 
TO: Board of Trustees  
  
FROM: Brodie Austin, Assistant Director  
 
RE: Library Cabling Project 
 
The library received bid packages from four vendors for our Cabling Project. Outsource 
Solutions Group’s staff reviewed the bids to ensure their accuracy and completeness and 
conducted reference checks. As you will see in the attached memo, Outsource Solutions 
Group (OSG) recommends that the library award the project to Low Voltage Solutions.  
 
In addition to being the lowest bidder at $52,350.00, Low Voltage Solutions’ references 
were very positive. Northwestern worked with them on a large project involving cabling and 
installing a fiber back bone. Their reference said, “Project Manager and I and the foreman 
worked closely – no surprises – no issues.” Another reference, SilverCross Hospital, said, 
“Worked with them for 10 years – wired entire hospital.  All low voltage – changes or adds 
and all off campus facilities – we only use LVS.” 
 
Based on this feedback and OSG’s review of the bid documents and recommendation, we 
recommend that the Board award the project to Low Voltage Solutions. 
 
Supporting Documents 

• OSG Memo 
• Bid Tabulation 
• Completed Bid Package 

Page 21 of 145



 

 

November 8, 2018 

 
Northbrook Public Library 
1201 Cedar Lane 
Northbrook, Il 60062 
 
Dear Brodie, 
 
It has been a pleasure to work on the NPL Cable Bid project with you.   After reviewing and evaluating 
the (4) four Bidder’s, it is the recommendation to consider Low Voltage as your provider for this project. 
 
Low Voltage is the lowest bidder with references from two large Hospitals which continue to engage 
Low Voltage for services.   
 
One reference stood out in particular, Silver Cross Hospital.  Reference stated they only use Low Voltage 
and have been for 10 years.   
 
The same reference Silver Cross hospital relayed “their techs are so professional – they work in an 
occupied public space extremely well.”    
 
Low Voltage also met the requirements of the bid and supplied all the necessary documentation to be 
considered by the Library as the front runner. 
 
 
Thank you, 
 
Allison Norton 
Account Manager 
Outsource Solutions Group, Inc. 
 
 
 

Page 22 of 145



Library Cabling Project | Bid Tabulation 

 Applied 
Communications Airport Electric Low Voltage 

Solutions MidCo 

Did the Bidder attend the Mandatory Walk-
Through on October 8, 2018 Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Did the Bidder submit proposal by the deadline 
of October 26, 2018 by 3pm CST? Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Did the Bidder supply 3 hard copies as well as 
three soft copies on (3) USB Flash Drives that are 
labeled with the Bidders name as instructed? 

Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Did the Bidder supply additional documentation? Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Did Bidder include Cat6 Cable in their Bid? Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Did the Bidder completely fill out the Bid Pricing 
form and sign it? Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Did the Bidder provide a list of Independent 
Contractor(s). Sub-Contractor(s) or Sub-
Consultant(s)? 

Yes Yes Yes No 

Did the Bidder provide a completed reference 
list? Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Did the Bidder supply Certificate of Bidder 
Eligibility that is signed and notarized? Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Did the Bidder complete, sign and notarize the 
Certificate of Compliance with Illinois Drug Free 
Workplace Act? 

Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Did the Bidder complete, sign and notarize the 
Certificate regarding Sexual Harassment Policy? Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Did the Bidder complete, sign and notarize 
Certificate Regarding Equal Employment 
Opportunity? 

Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Did the Bidder complete, sign and notarize the 
Non Collusion Affidavit? Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Did the Bidder complete and sign the Illinois 
Drug Free Workplace Statement? Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Qualified Pricing from each Bidder Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Did Bidder submit all pages of the NOCB? Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Bid Amount $53,801.00 $56,951.49 $52,350.00 $65,586.13 

 

Page 23 of 145



 
PROPOSAL FOR 

 

 
 

 
Northbrook Public Library 

Attn: Mike McGreevey 
Administration Office 

1201 Cedar Lane 
Northbrook, IL 60062 

 
 
 

 
LIBRARY CABLING PROJECT 

DUE: 3:00 P.M. October 26, 2018 
 
 

 
 

By 
 

Mr. Justin Blaine, Project Mgr. 
Low Voltage Solutions, Inc. 

16706 Advantage Ave. 
Crest Hill, Illinois  60403 

(630) 434-9600    Fax (630) 434-9767 
 

Page 24 of 145

http://www.lvsolutions.com/


Page 25 of 145



BID FORM

Page 26 of 145



Page 27 of 145



Page 28 of 145



Page 29 of 145



 

 

 

 

 

Page 30 of 145



Page 31 of 145



Page 32 of 145



Page 33 of 145



Page 34 of 145



Page 35 of 145



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 36 of 145



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 37 of 145



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 38 of 145



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 39 of 145



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 40 of 145



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 41 of 145



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 42 of 145



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 43 of 145



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 44 of 145



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 45 of 145



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 46 of 145



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 47 of 145



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 48 of 145



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 49 of 145



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 50 of 145



 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 51 of 145



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 52 of 145



 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 53 of 145



 

 

 

 

 

Page 54 of 145



Page 55 of 145



Page 56 of 145



80 hrs   $99.00  $ 7,920.00
N/A    N/A   $ 3,430.00

$ 11,350.00

Page 57 of 145

agarcia
Sticky Note
Marked set by agarcia

agarcia
Sticky Note
Marked set by agarcia

agarcia
Sticky Note
Marked set by agarcia



210 hrs          $99.00            $ 20,790.00
N/A    N/A   $ 12,210.00

$ 33,000.00

Page 58 of 145

agarcia
Sticky Note
Marked set by agarcia

agarcia
Sticky Note
Marked set by agarcia

agarcia
Sticky Note
Unmarked set by agarcia



42 hrs   $99.00  $ 4,158.00
N/A    N/A   $ 3,842.00

$ 8,000.00

Page 59 of 145

agarcia
Sticky Note
Marked set by agarcia



Page 60 of 145

agarcia
Typewritten Text
Low Voltage Solutions, Inc.

agarcia
Typewritten Text
16706 Advantage Ave.Crest Hill, IL 60403

agarcia
Typewritten Text
Justin Blaine, Project Manager

agarcia
Typewritten Text
815-823-8055

agarcia
Typewritten Text
N/A

agarcia
Typewritten Text
N/A

agarcia
Typewritten Text
N/A

agarcia
Typewritten Text
N/A

agarcia
Typewritten Text
N/A



Page 61 of 145



Page 62 of 145



Page 63 of 145



Page 64 of 145



Page 65 of 145



Page 66 of 145



Page 67 of 145



Page 68 of 145



Page 69 of 145



Page 70 of 145



BID BOND

Page 71 of 145



Page 72 of 145



Page 73 of 145



Page 74 of 145



Page 75 of 145



RCDD CERTIFICATE

Page 76 of 145



Page 77 of 145



COMPANY PROFILE
AND

REFERENCES

Page 78 of 145



COMPANY 
    OVERVIEW

Our mission is to deliver the most comprehensive 
Information Technology Solutions for our customers in a 
broad range of industry sectors. 

DEVELOP.

INNOVATE.

IMPLEMENT.

ADVANCE.

GROW.

LEAD.

16706 Advantage Ave. 
Crest Hill, IL 60403
TEL: 630.434.9600
FAX: 630.434.9767

www.LVSolutions.com

1997-2017
ANNIVERSARY

Page 79 of 145



BUILDING 
WIRELESS

STRUCTURED 
CABLING

AUDIO/
VIDEO

FIRE 
ALARM

VIDEO
SURVEILLANCE

ACCESS 
CONTROL

SOUND 
MASKING

About LVS
WHO ARE WE: 
Low Voltage Solutions was incorporated in 1997 
by Gary St. Cin and the late John Fassett. Since 
then our team has grown to over 60 highly-skilled 
and technically-trained employees that serve the 
Chicagoland and surrounding areas. 

WHAT WE DO: 
LVS is a complete solutions provider of 
Information Technology Systems.  We provide 
both the design and installation of voice, data, 
and fiber optic cabling as well as IP-based 
technologies for today’s rapidly changing 
environments.

LOW VOLTAGE SOLUTIONS SPECIALIZES IN:

“Thanks for assigning a great team for 
our new hospital. Your staff went the 
extra mile for our new facility. LVS will 
be at the top of our list for any future 
projects.” 
- Kevin Lane, Silver Cross Hospital

“LVS completed a 34-story residential 
high rise with 350 residential units and 
I was impressed by their dedication and 
quality of work. Because of the work 
of everyone at LVS from the field to the 
office I would highly recommend their 
abilities to other customers.” 
- Rick Jansen, Shamrock Electric

Page 80 of 145



Meet our Team

“You guys may be the most professional company I have 
worked with in the 37 years I have been in construction.” 
- Bob Krause, Forrest Construction

GARY ST. CIN, RCDD
President  

TERESA ST. CIN
Vice President  

JUSTIN BLAINE
Project Manager

DON RYAN
Senior Project Manager 

NICK SIWAK
Project Manager / 
Superintendent / 
Safety Director

MARK GRACZYK
Project Manager

AUBREY BLAINE
Assistant Project 

Manager 

RACHEL BARKER
Office Manager 

Page 81 of 145



The LVS Difference

Low Voltage Solutions is staffed 
by industry trained installers 
who take great pride in quality of 
work, presentation and customer 
relationships. Our dedicated teams 
are focused on designing, installing 
and maintaining Information 
Technology Systems that deliver 
optimum performance. 

Low Voltage Solutions has years of experience with all 
aspects of information and technology systems. We 
can provide practical cost-effective solutions utilizing 
the top manufactured products and solutions in the 
industry.

Our reputation was built on solid client relationships 
and quality workmanship in all industry sectors.  We 
are committed to providing the most cost-effective 
solution by installing a resilient, future proof 
communications infrastructure and IP-based systems.

Let our experienced team assist 
you with your next IT System or 
Infrastructure project.

Page 82 of 145



Our Process

Determine customer requirements either 
through plans and specifications or 
through direct site visit and survey with 
the customer.

Provide quotation and proposal based 
upon those requirements for material 
and labor.

Upon acceptance assign Project Manager 
and provide all Certificates of Insurance, 
Bonding, Material Submittals, Shop 
Drawings required.

Project Manager will meet with customer for kick-off meeting to go over our 
execution plan.

Assign field personnel to execute the project. 

At the completion of the project LVS provides specific labor and material 
warranties, O&M Manuals, As-Built Drawings (CAD or PDF) and provides test 
results of structured cabling systems.

1

2

3

4

5

6

“I have worked with LVS since 2004. LVS has 
demonstrated diligence and dedication in completing 
their work on time and without interruption to Walsh 
and other trades. LVS is an excellent contractor and has 
been an asset to my team and Walsh Construction.” 
- James Reichert, Walsh Construction

Page 83 of 145



References

COMPANY:

Eataly Restaurant
Shedd Aquarium

Benedictine University
Northwestern University
University of Illinois Chicago

Silver Cross Hospital 
Presence Health
Loyola University Hospital 

Verizon Destination Store

Power Construction 
Bulley Andrews
Reed Construction 

Argonne National Labs

CONTACT:  PHONE:

Caolan Sleeper  (914) 391-4307
Bob Wengel  (312) 939-8277

Paul Giordano  (630) 461-0830
Doug Dickerson  (847) 366-9609
Tom Weise  (312) 355-5383

Mark England (815) 740-7017
Timothy Hoekstra  (815) 867-1043
Loretta Wolski (708) 216-5752

Gunner Wolski  (847) 706-7507

Aaron Moe (847) 833-0494
Beau O’Donnell (773) 645-5861
Scott Pickands (312) 943-8100

Mike Monczynski, Jr. (630) 252-4181

Co
m

m
er

ci
al

Ed
uc

at
io

n
H

ea
lt

hc
ar

e
Re

ta
il

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
s

G
ov

er
nm

en
t

“I just wanted to send a note regarding the excellent work 
your team has done and continues to do here at the Shedd. 
Your foreman Jeff Duschene is remarkable to work with over 
the years and has contributed to keeping Shedd one of the 
premier cultural institutions in Chicago. Truly a pleasure to 
work with him and everyone at LVS” 
- Chris Clous, Shedd Aquarium

Page 84 of 145



Manufacture Partners

Network 
Infrastructure

Access 
Control

Camera 
Systems

Video 
Management 

Audio 
Visual 

“I understand LVS will be performing at Low Voltage 
work at several significant projects at CPS. This is 
great news to know that we have a qualified and 
knowledgeable contractor on these projects, it will make 
my life significantly better!” 
- Vic Sassolino, Chicago Public Schools

“LVS completed several Fed-Ex CCTV projects 
for us over the past year. Everyone is 
extremely pleased with the work LVS did. 
Your team did an outstanding job and were 
a joy to work with” 
- Ray Maloney, Command Security

Page 85 of 145



16706 Advantage Ave. Crest Hill, IL 60403  /  TEL: 630.434.9600  /  FAX: 630.434.9767  /  www.LVSolutions.com

HIGH ENERGY.
LOW VOLTAGE.
LOCALLY OWNED.

1997-2017
ANNIVERSARY

Page 86 of 145



CERTIFICATE OF 
INSURANCE

(SAMPLE)

Page 87 of 145



DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

CONTACTPRODUCER NAME:
FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

INSURER A :
INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

ADDL SUBRINSR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP
TYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITSPOLICY NUMBERLTR (MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)INSD WVD

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTED

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $JECT

$OTHER:
COMBINED SINGLE LIMITAUTOMOBILE LIABILITY $(Ea accident)
BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ANY AUTO

ALL OWNED SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS AUTOS
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $HIRED AUTOS (Per accident)AUTOS

$

UMBRELLA LIAB EACH OCCURRENCE $OCCUR
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

$DED RETENTION $
PER OTH-WORKERS COMPENSATION
STATUTE ERAND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y / N

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $
N / AOFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORDACORD 25 (2014/01)

LOWVO-1 OP ID: DA

04/05/2018

Brown & Brown

of Northern Illinois

220 North Larkin

Joliet, IL 60435

Lawrence Jungles

815-729-4650 815-729-4727

Hastings Mutual Ins Co 14176
Low Voltage Solutions, Inc.

Low Voltage Security, Inc.

16706 Advantage Ave.

Crest Hill, IL 60403

A X 2,000,000
X CPP9888870 04/15/2018 04/15/2019 300,000

10,000
2,000,000
4,000,000

X 4,000,000

1,000,000
A X ACV9888871 04/15/2018 04/15/2019

X X

XX 10,000,000
A ULC9888873 04/15/2018 04/15/2019 10,000,000

X
A WC9888872 04/15/2018 04/15/2019 1,000,000N

1,000,000
1,000,000

A Lsd/Rntd Equipment CPP9888870 04/15/2018 04/15/2019 Limit: 375,000
A Install Floater CPP9888870 04/15/2018 04/15/2019 Limit: 300,000

SAMPLE

LOW VOLTAGE SOLUTIONS

Page 88 of 145



 
 

Memorandum 
 

DATE: November 6, 2018  
 
TO: Board of Trustees  
  
FROM: Kate Hall, Executive Director  
 
RE: Technical Services & Maintenance Remodel Project  
 
We are ready to go out to bid for the construction project for TS and Maintenance.  
This project includes the following: 
 

 Creation of a maintenance workroom for staff 

 Creation of a dedicated library storage space 

 Creation of a maintenance shop 

 Redesign of Technical Services workroom 

 Additional VAV boxes for the HVAC system 

 Upgrading the Cat 5 cabling to Cat 6 
 
When originally proposed, they were estimated at $472,000.  After reviewing the work 
we were doing with the cabling project, we determined that it would be better to 
move the cabling in the Technical Services area into this project.  As a result, the new 
estimate is now $484,674.   
 
Attached in the packet is the cost estimate breakdown, the project timeline, and the 
layouts for the new space.   
 
 
 
 
 

Page 89 of 145



3 Dated

Job #

11/05/2018Rev #

1st Flr Tech

1801707BD

Rev Desc

Northbrook Library

Estimate Summary and Detail Combined Report

Northbrook Public Library - Tech Services

Description Cost/ QTYTotal CostSubJob Area UM

AAA Total Preliminary Budget 4,100 SF $ 484,674 $ 118.21 / SF

Job Total $ 484,674

Please note that Line Items are not guaranteed. They are presented for information only.

 8Report ID # : EM01 Page 1 of

11/07/2018 12:11 PM

Page 90 of 145



Estimate Summary and Detail Combined Report

Northbrook Public Library - Tech Services

Northbrook Library

Rev Desc :

11/05/2018Dated :

1801707BD

1st Flr Tech Area_50%

Job # :

3Rev # :

AAA Total Preliminary BudgetSub Job 4,100Area : SF

Description CommentsTotal CostCP Cost/SF

0150 Temporary Construction 2,462 0.60

0242 Selective Demolition 7,201 1.76

0420 Unit Masonry 6,720 1.64

0610 Carpentry/ Millwork 6,850 1.67

0811 Furnish D/F/H 9,900 2.41

0841 Aluminum Storefront 0 0.00 No scope.

0881 Glass Glazing 1,300 0.32

0929 Mtl Frame/ Drywall 19,740 4.81

0951 Acoustical Ceilings 10,336 2.52

0960 Flooring 26,220 6.40

0991 Painting 10,010 2.44

2100 Fire Protection 10,520 2.57

2200 Plumbing 8,950 2.18

2300 HVAC 96,515 23.54

2600 Electrical 49,000 11.95

2700 Low Voltage 19,375 4.73

8000 Osha Safety 1,196 0.29

9100 Management Reimbursables 42,782 10.43

9300 Preconstruction Services 6,120 1.49

Sub Job AAA Subtotal 335,196

Contingency (8 %) 26,816

Builders Risk (.0845 %) 306

Performance Bond 3,913

General Liability Insurance (1.1 %) 4,029

Fee (5 %) 18,513

Furniture 60,000

A/E Fee (8 %) 35,902

Sub Job AAA Total 484,674 / SF 118.21

Please note that Line Items are not guaranteed. They are presented for information only.

Page 2 of 8

11/07/2018 12:11 PM

Report ID # : EM01
Page 91 of 145



Estimate Summary and Detail Combined Report

Northbrook Public Library - Tech Services

Northbrook Library

Rev Desc :

11/05/2018Dated :

1801707BD

1st Flr Tech Area_50%

Job # :

3Rev # :

CommentsCost/SFDescription Total Cost

Ctrl

Phase Qty W/M Cost /WM

AAASubJob Area : SF4,100Total Preliminary Budget

0150 Temporary Construction

0150.120 Floor Protection

0150.120. 01 22.00 286Ram Board LS13

0150.120. 02 220.00 220Misc. Materials LS1

0150.120. 03 55.00 165Walk Off Mats LS3

0150.130 Temporary Barricades & Signs

0150.130. 01 19.80 515Dust Partitions LF26

0150.130. 02 13.20 370Delineation Cones - Exhaust Fan

Install
LF28

0150.130. 03 330.00 330Signs LF1

0150.150 Temporary Openings

0150.150. 01 35.20 70Plywood for East Opening EA2

0150.180 Storefront/Door Protection

0150.180. 01 44.00 396Foam Boards LS9

0150.180. 02 110.00 110Paper for Windows LS1

2,462 0.600150 Total

0242 Selective Demolition

0242.000 Dumpster 4 EA 523.10 2,092

0242.190 Demo Walls 32 LF 22.00 704

0242.192 Selective Demo Wall for Bulkhead 14 LF 22.00 308

0242.193 Remove and Salvage D/F/H 1 EA 330.00 330

0242.198 Demo Millwork 120 SF 11.00 1,320

0242.199 Remove Carpet 4,077 SF 0.60 2,446

7,201 1.760242 Total

0420 Unit Masonry

0420.000 Create Opening in Masonry Wall, Door

106
1 LS 6,720.00 6,720

6,720 1.640420 Total

Please note that Line Items are not guaranteed. They are presented for information only.

Page 3 of 8

11/07/2018 12:11 PM

Report ID # : EM01
Page 92 of 145



Estimate Summary and Detail Combined Report

Northbrook Public Library - Tech Services

Northbrook Library

Rev Desc :

11/05/2018Dated :

1801707BD

1st Flr Tech Area_50%

Job # :

3Rev # :

CommentsCost/SFDescription Total Cost

Ctrl

Phase Qty W/M Cost /WM

0610 Carpentry/ Millwork

0610.540 Existing Book Shelves Remove, protect, store &

reinstall. Unistrut to remain

mounted.

66 LF 40.00 2,640

0610.550 Salvage Existing Millwork, Upper/Lower Not Included. See Scope

Alternate.
0 LF 0.00 0

0610.560 Millwork Furniture By Owner.0 LS 0.00 0

0610.570 Install New 30x70 Wood Door 3 EA 325.00 975

0610.580 Install New 30x70 Fire Rated Door 1 EA 325.00 325

0610.590 Install Salvaged 30x70 Wood Door 1 EA 325.00 325

0610.600 Install New 60x70 Doors 1 EA 700.00 700

0610.610 Set HM Frames 6 EA 220.00 1,320

0610.630 Install HM 6'x4' Punched Window 1 EA 325.00 325

0611.010 Furnish and Install 48"x48" FRP 1 EA 240.00 240

6,850 1.670610 Total

0811 Furnish D/F/H

0811.000 Furnish 30x70 HM F/ Wd Dr & Hardware 3 EA 1,540.00 4,620

0811.010 Reuse Existing 30x70 HM F/ Wd Dr &

Hardware
1 EA 0.00 0

0811.020 Furnish 60x70 HM F/ Stl Dr & Hardware 1 EA 2,640.00 2,640

0811.130 Furnish 30x70 - FR HM F/ Wd Dr &

Hardware
Fire Rated.1 EA 1,980.00 1,980

0811.131 Furnish 4'x6' HM Punched Window

Frame
1 EA 660.00 660

9,900 2.410811 Total

0841 Aluminum Storefront

0841.000 Aluminum Storefronts/ Glazing Not included.0 LS 0.00 0

0 0.000841 Total

0881 Glass Glazing

0881.000 F&I, 1/4" Tempered Glass Glazing, 4'x6' 1 EA 650.00 650

0881.130 F&I, 1/4" Tempered Glass Glazing, Door

105
1 EA 650.00 650

1,300 0.320881 Total

0929 Mtl Frame/ Drywall

0929.000 3 5/8" Drywall Partition 106 LF 118.00 12,508

0929.100 Bulkhead Repair 14 LF 64.00 896

0929.200 Drywall Demo/Re-install for Electrical 36 SF 32.00 1,152

0929.250 Drywall Demo/Reinstall for Plumbing 62 SF 32.00 1,984

0929.300 Misc Drywall Patching 1 LS 2,400.00 2,400

0929.350 Drywall Columns 2 EA 400.00 800

19,740 4.810929 Total

Please note that Line Items are not guaranteed. They are presented for information only.

Page 4 of 8

11/07/2018 12:11 PM

Report ID # : EM01
Page 93 of 145



Estimate Summary and Detail Combined Report

Northbrook Public Library - Tech Services

Northbrook Library

Rev Desc :

11/05/2018Dated :

1801707BD

1st Flr Tech Area_50%

Job # :

3Rev # :

CommentsCost/SFDescription Total Cost

Ctrl

Phase Qty W/M Cost /WM

0951 Acoustical Ceilings

0951.130 Selective Removal/Reinstall of Existing

Ceiling

Existing tile & grid to remain.

Salvage for re-install.

Allowance.

834 SF 12.39 10,336

10,336 2.520951 Total

0960 Flooring

0960.000 F&I Carpet 322 SY 42.00 13,524

0960.100 F&I VCT 1,534 SF 4.00 6,136

0960.130 F&I Rubber Base 640 LF 2.50 1,600

0960.131 Floor Patching/ Leveling 4,100 SF 1.00 4,100

0960.900 Moisture Mitigation 42 SF 6.19 260

0960.990 Patch Flooring at Opening 106 1 LS 600.00 600

26,220 6.400960 Total

0991 Painting

0991.000 Painting 4,072 SF 1.10 4,479

0991.130 Paint Existing Brick Walls 1,530 SF 1.85 2,830

0991.250 Paint Door & Frames 9 EA 300.00 2,700

10,010 2.440991 Total

2100 Fire Protection

2100.000 Permitting and Shop Drawings 1 LS 1,400.00 1,400

2102.000 Drain Down 1 LS 480.00 480

2102.020 Add New Heads 16 EA 480.00 7,680

2103.000 Hydrostatic Testing 1 LS 960.00 960

10,520 2.572100 Total

2200 Plumbing

2200.000 Plumbing Demolition 1 LS 950.00 950

2201.060 Furnish New Maintenance Sink/Faucet

2201.060. 01 500.00 500Adv. Tabco 16 G. 4-41-24 EA1

2201.060. 02 280.00 280Adv. Tabco K-240 EA1

2201.060. 03 370.00 370T&S Brass B-0133 EA1

2201.060. 05 1,000.00 1,000Misc. Pipe/Insulation EA1

2202.020 Install New Maintenance Sink 1 EA 5,850.00 5,850

8,950 2.182200 Total

Please note that Line Items are not guaranteed. They are presented for information only.

Page 5 of 8

11/07/2018 12:11 PM

Report ID # : EM01
Page 94 of 145



Estimate Summary and Detail Combined Report

Northbrook Public Library - Tech Services

Northbrook Library

Rev Desc :

11/05/2018Dated :

1801707BD

1st Flr Tech Area_50%

Job # :

3Rev # :

CommentsCost/SFDescription Total Cost

Ctrl

Phase Qty W/M Cost /WM

2300 HVAC

2304.000 Hvac Demolition 4,100 SF 1.65 6,765

2305.290 Rework Existing Ductwork 4,100 SF 6.00 24,600

2305.530 F&I VAV Box (1-4), 1,000 CFM w/ 30,000

BTUH
4 EA 5,200.00 20,800

2305.930 F&I VAV Box (5) 1,000 CFM w/45,000

BTUH
1 EA 6,800.00 6,800

2307.135 F&I New Exhaust Duct, Spray Booth 1 EA 3,200.00 3,200

2307.160 DDC Controls to Tie-in Existing Siemens

System
8 EA 2,500.00 20,000

2309.000 Tie-in to Existing BAS Graphics Included.1 LS 0.00 0

2309.134 Test & Balancing 4,100 SF 1.50 6,150

2309.230 Comissioning 4,100 SF 2.00 8,200

2309.530 Spray Booth - Eptex 4FT Commercial

Powder Booth
Not Included. By Owner.0 EA 0.00 0

96,515 23.542300 Total

2600 Electrical

2600.000 Electrical Demolition 4,100 SF 1.00 4,100

2600.102 Branch Power, Duplex Receptacles 30 EA 500.00 15,000

2600.500 Re-Work Existing Lighting No new fixtures. (6) new

zones. Occ. sensor tie-in.
4,100 SF 4.00 16,400

2600.530 Overhead Cord Reels 4 EA 450.00 1,800

2605.191 Re-Work FA Devices No new front end equipment.4,100 SF 1.50 6,150

2612.000 Scan Concrete 1 LS 750.00 750

2612.100 Channel Concrete Floor for New Conduit 18 LF 120.00 2,160

2612.120 Patch Floor for New Conduit 18 LF 80.00 1,440

2613.000 Floor Box 2 EA 600.00 1,200

49,000 11.952600 Total

2700 Low Voltage

2700.000 LV Demolition 1 LS 1,800.00 1,800

2705.290 Phone & Data Locations 37 EA 475.00 17,575

2705.332 Front End Equipment By owner.0 LS 0.00 0

19,375 4.732700 Total

8000 Osha Safety

8000.010 Safety Director 4 HR 127.16 509

8000.040 Fire Extinguishers 2 EA 247.50 495

8000.050 First Aid Equipment 1 LS 192.50 192

1,196 0.298000 Total

Please note that Line Items are not guaranteed. They are presented for information only.

Page 6 of 8

11/07/2018 12:11 PM

Report ID # : EM01
Page 95 of 145



Estimate Summary and Detail Combined Report

Northbrook Public Library - Tech Services

Northbrook Library

Rev Desc :

11/05/2018Dated :

1801707BD

1st Flr Tech Area_50%

Job # :

3Rev # :

CommentsCost/SFDescription Total Cost

Ctrl

Phase Qty W/M Cost /WM

9100 Management Reimbursables

9101.010 VP / Project Director Jim Creath12 WK 0.00 0

9101.020 Project Executive LeeAnn McNamara - NC

overview
12 WK 0.00 0

9101.050 Project Engineer 8 hrs per wk12 WK 661.25 7,935

9101.090 Foreman Full time CFM6 WK 5,470.17 32,821

9102.020 Accountant 8 hr per mo3 MO 601.91 1,806

9104.040 Print Reproduction 1 LS 220.00 220

42,782 10.439100 Total

9300 Preconstruction Services

9300.000 Preconstruction Services 40 HR 153.00 6,120

6,120 1.499300 Total

AAA Subtotal 335,196

9920   Contingency (8 %) 26,816

9950   Builders Risk (.0845 %) 306

9960   Performance Bond 3,913

9900   General Liability Insurance (1.1 %) 4,029

9940   Fee (5 %) 18,513

9990   Furniture 60,000

9991   A/E Fee (8 %) 35,902

AAA Total 484,674 118.21

Please note that Line Items are not guaranteed. They are presented for information only.

Page 7 of 8

11/07/2018 12:11 PM

Report ID # : EM01
Page 96 of 145



Estimate Summary and Detail Combined Report

Northbrook Public Library - Tech Services

Northbrook Library

Rev Desc :

11/05/2018Dated :

1801707BD

1st Flr Tech Area_50%

Job # :

3Rev # :

Comments : Estimate Assumptions and Clarifications

The following items are not included in this estimate, and may be required to be

included as part of the Owner's overall project costs (Soft Costs).

   * All costs associated with any hazardous material testing, remediation, disposal, etc.

   * Any and all, testing and inspection fees.

   * Permits and/or fees of any kind.

   * Any and all County, City, utility, etc. charges for electrical, water, gas, storm,

sanitary etc. tie-ins, relocation and/tapping fees.

   * Any costs associated with salvage, removal, disposal, purchasing, installing, etc. of

all existing and/or new furniture, book shelves, signage, art work, personal affects, AV

equipment, etc. unless specifically mentioned in the estimate.

   * Any costs associated with moving, relocation, storage, temporary office build-out,

for temporary library staff usage.

   * Any costs associated with final cleaning.

   * Any costs associated with converting and/or redrawing final as-built conditions into

CAD, Revit, etc. files.

General Clarifications

   * This pricing is based on the drawings titled "Interior Renovation Northbrook Public

Library" sheets A0.0, A1.0, A2.0, E1.0, E2.0, P1.0 received 10.25.2018, as well as, the

description of the mechanical scope of work and sketch provided by B.E.S. dated

10.19.2018.

   * This pricing is based on project schedule dated 11.06.2018.

   * Onsite supervision has been included for (6) weeks.

   * All work is to be completed in a single phase.

   * All work is assumed to be completed during normal business hours.

   * Temporary utility charges are excluded as it is assumed we can use the Library's

existing utilities.

   * It is assumed that the proposed bulkhead in room 103 is sufficiently supported from

the deck above.

   * VCT is figured as the flooring type in shop 102. See alternates for floated floor and

sealed concrete.

   * It was assumed that (16) new fire sprinkler heads would be necessary to provide

sufficient coverage.

   * No water heater units, pipe, parts, fittings, or associated labor is included.

   * Spray booth unit in shop 102 is not included, it is assumed that the booth has an

internal exhaust fan.

   * PCC cannot guarantee the total value of the furniture as listed in the estimate

summary.

SubJobs:All Sub JobsNApproved VE:N Pending SA: Pending VE:N NApproved SA:

Please note that Line Items are not guaranteed. They are presented for information only.

Page 8 of 8

11/07/2018 12:11 PM

Report ID # : EM01
Page 97 of 145



NPL - Tech Services 

Standard View

Print Date:  11/7/2018

Data Date:  11/6/2018

Page:  1 of  4Revision Number:  

Revision Comments:

Revision Date:

1

Revised per 11.02.2018 Meeting

11/2/2018

Line
Task

Number
Activity Name Duration Start Finish

2018 2019
Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

24 8 22 5 19 3 17 31 14 28 11 25 11 25 8 22 6 20 3 17
1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

0010

0020

0030

0040

0050

0060

0070

0080

0081

0091

0100

0101

0103

0113

0114

0123

0542

0124

0133

0134

0143

0144

0153

0163

0173

Milestones

Project Award

Recieve Issue for Bid Documents

Bid Opening

GMP Approval

Construction Start

Punchlist Review

NPL Move-in Day

Summer Reading Begins

Pre-Construction

Document Development

Schematic Design Review

Construction Documents

90% CD Budgeting

90% CD Budget Packet for
Board Review

Recieve IFB (Issue for Bid) Set

NPL - Board Packet Distribution

NPL - Board Meeting

Prepare Bid Documents

Bid Announcement to NPL (AA)

Issue for Bid

Pre-Bid Walk Through

Subcontractor Bidding

Bid Opening - 9:30 AM

Bid Analysis / GMP
Establishment

176d

84d

82d

30d

9d

10d

5d

15d

16d

10/01/18 A

10/01/18 A

11/12/18

12/18/18

01/18/19

03/22/19

05/01/19

05/10/19

06/08/19 *

09/28/18 A

09/28/18 A

09/28/18 A

10/01/18 A

10/25/18 A

11/07/18 *

11/12/18 *

11/09/18 *

11/15/18 *

11/12/18

11/20/18 *

11/27/18

12/03/18 *

11/27/18

12/18/18 *

12/18/18

06/08/19

10/01/18 A

11/12/18

12/18/18

01/18/19

03/22/19

05/01/19

05/10/19

06/08/19

01/29/19

01/24/19

09/28/18 A

11/09/18

11/06/18

11/07/18

11/12/18

11/09/18

11/15/18

11/26/18

11/20/18

11/27/18

12/07/18

12/17/18

12/18/18

01/10/19

Milestones

Project Award

Recieve Issue for Bid Documents

Bid Opening

GMP Approval

Construction Start

Punchlist Review

NPL Move-in Day

Summer Reading Begins

Pre-Construction

Document Development

Schematic Design Review

Construction Documents

90% CD Budgeting

90% CD Budget Packet for Board Review

Recieve IFB (Issue for Bid) Set

NPL - Board Packet Distribution

NPL - Board Meeting

Prepare Bid Documents

Bid Announcement to NPL (AA)

Issue for Bid

Pre-Bid Walk Through

Subcontractor Bidding

Bid Opening - 9:30 AM

Bid Analysis / GMP Establishment

Milestones

Project Award

Recieve Issue for Bid Documents

Bid Opening

GMP Approval

Construction Start

Punchlist Review

NPL Move-in Day

Summer Reading Begins

Pre-Construction

Document Development

Schematic Design Review

Construction Documents

90% CD Budgeting

90% CD Budget Packet for Board Review

Recieve IFB (Issue for Bid) Set

NPL - Board Packet Distribution

NPL - Board Meeting

Prepare Bid Documents

Bid Announcement to NPL (AA)

Issue for Bid

Pre-Bid Walk Through

Subcontractor Bidding

Bid Opening - 9:30 AM

Bid Analysis / GMP Establishment

Page 98 of 145



NPL - Tech Services 

Standard View

Print Date:  11/7/2018

Data Date:  11/6/2018

Page:  2 of  4Revision Number:  

Revision Comments:

Revision Date:

1

Revised per 11.02.2018 Meeting

11/2/2018

Line
Task

Number
Activity Name Duration Start Finish

2018 2019
Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

24 8 22 5 19 3 17 31 14 28 11 25 11 25 8 22 6 20 3 17
26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

0532

0184

0193

0104

0120

0130

0140

0141

0161

0162

0172

0182

0183

0221

0290

0300

0301

0310

0320

0552

0492

0422

0402

0330

0562

Provide Packet to NPL (KH &
AA)

Present Packet to Board - 7:30
PM

Board Review / GMP Approval

Subcontract Agreements

Permiting

Recieve Permit Drawings

Northbrook Permit Set Review

Recieve Permit

Procurement

Construction  Preparation

Auction Salvaged Items

Relocate Staff to Civic Room

Relocate Staff to Old Dig. Service

Construction

Mobilize to Site

MEP Demo & Make-safe

Selective Demolition

Wall Layout & Base Plate Install

Ceiling Tile & Grid Selective
Demo

Rough Framing

Floor Trenching, Raceway Install
& Floor Patching

In-wall Blocking

Install HM Door Frames &
Drywall Selective Demolition

Masonry Repairs

1d

5d

35d

30d

55d

15d

15d

3d

3d

36d

36d

2d

1d

2d

2d

2d

2d

3d

1d

2d

2d

01/11/19 *

01/17/19 *

01/17/19

01/18/19

12/07/18

12/07/18 *

12/14/18

01/29/19

01/25/19

03/04/19

03/04/19 *

03/18/19

03/18/19

03/22/19

03/22/19

03/22/19

03/25/19

03/26/19

03/28/19

03/28/19

04/01/19

04/01/19

04/03/19

04/03/19

04/05/19

01/11/19

01/17/19

01/17/19

01/24/19

01/29/19

12/07/18

01/28/19

01/29/19

04/11/19

03/22/19

03/22/19

03/20/19

03/20/19

05/10/19

05/10/19

03/25/19

03/25/19

03/27/19

03/29/19

03/29/19

04/02/19

04/03/19

04/03/19

04/04/19

04/08/19

Provide Packet to NPL (KH & AA)

Present Packet to Board - 7:30 PM

Board Review / GMP Approval

Subcontract Agreements

Permiting

Recieve Permit Drawings

Northbrook Permit Set Review

Recieve Permit

Procurement

Construction  Preparation

Auction Salvaged Items

Relocate Staff to Civic Room

Relocate Staff to Old Dig. Service

Construction

Mobilize to Site

MEP Demo & Make-safe

Selective Demolition

Wall Layout & Base Plate Install

Ceiling Tile & Grid Selective Demo

Rough Framing

Floor Trenching, Raceway Install & Floor Patching

In-wall Blocking

Install HM Door Frames & Drywall Selective Demolition

Masonry Repairs

Provide Packet to NPL (KH & AA)

Present Packet to Board - 7:30 PM

Board Review / GMP Approval

Subcontract Agreements

Permiting

Recieve Permit Drawings

Northbrook Permit Set Review

Recieve Permit

+ +
Procurement

Construction  Preparation

Auction Salvaged Items

Relocate Staff to Civic Room

Relocate Staff to Old Dig. Service

Construction

Mobilize to Site

MEP Demo & Make-safe

Selective Demolition

Wall Layout & Base Plate Install

Ceiling Tile & Grid Selective Demo

Rough Framing

Floor Trenching, Raceway Install & Floor Patching

In-wall Blocking

Install HM Door Frames & Drywall Selective Demolition

Masonry Repairs

5d

Page 99 of 145



NPL - Tech Services 

Standard View

Print Date:  11/7/2018

Data Date:  11/6/2018

Page:  3 of  4Revision Number:  

Revision Comments:

Revision Date:

1

Revised per 11.02.2018 Meeting

11/2/2018

Line
Task

Number
Activity Name Duration Start Finish

2018 2019
Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

24 8 22 5 19 3 17 31 14 28 11 25 11 25 8 22 6 20 3 17
51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

75

0382

0383

0412

0572

0340

0462

0341

0321

0351

0331

0350

0360

0361

0582

0482

0432

0380

0390

0400

0472

0401

0442

0512

0371

0452

In-wall Electric Rough-in

In-wall Plumbing Rough-in

Inspection - Rough Framing and
MEP Rough-in

Pull Cable and Trim Power & LV

Sheetrock Install & Taping

Door, Hardware, Glass Install

Prime & First Coat Paint

MEP Overhead Demo & Rework

Inspection - Above Ceiling MEP

Ceiling Grid Rework

Trim MEP Overhead

Reset Acoustic Ceiling Tile

HVAC BAS Graphic Interface

Test & Balance

Shelving Reinstall

Floor Prep

Flooring Install (Carpet & VCT)

Floor Base Install

Final Coat Paint

Construction Clean

Inspection - Final

Furniture Tie-in - Electrical

Collect Final Certicificate of
Occupancy

Owner Furnished, Owner Installed

Items:

Furniture/Equipment Delivery

2d

2d

1d

5d

3d

1d

2d

4d

1d

2d

2d

1d

10d

2d

1d

1d

3d

1d

2d

1d

1d

1d

7d

1d

04/04/19

04/04/19

04/08/19

04/09/19

04/09/19

04/12/19

04/15/19

04/11/19

04/17/19

04/15/19

04/18/19

04/22/19

04/15/19

04/23/19

04/22/19

04/23/19

04/24/19

04/29/19

04/29/19

04/30/19

05/01/19

05/07/19

05/09/19

05/02/19

05/02/19

04/05/19

04/05/19

04/08/19

04/15/19

04/11/19

04/12/19

04/16/19

04/16/19

04/17/19

04/16/19

04/19/19

04/22/19

04/26/19

04/24/19

04/22/19

04/23/19

04/26/19

04/29/19

04/30/19

04/30/19

05/01/19

05/07/19

05/09/19

05/10/19

05/02/19

In-wall Electric Rough-in

In-wall Plumbing Rough-in

Inspection - Rough Framing and MEP Rough-in

Pull Cable and Trim Power & LV

Sheetrock Install & Taping

Door, Hardware, Glass Install

Prime & First Coat Paint

MEP Overhead Demo & Rework

Inspection - Above Ceiling MEP

Ceiling Grid Rework

Trim MEP Overhead

Reset Acoustic Ceiling Tile

HVAC BAS Graphic Interface

Test & Balance

Shelving Reinstall

Floor Prep

Flooring Install (Carpet & VCT)

Floor Base Install

Final Coat Paint

Construction Clean

Inspection - Final

Furniture Tie-in - Electrical

Collect Final Certicificate of Occupancy

Owner Furnished, Owner Installed Items:

Furniture/Equipment Delivery

In-wall Electric Rough-in

In-wall Plumbing Rough-in

Inspection - Rough Framing and MEP Rough-in

Pull Cable and Trim Power & LV

Sheetrock Install & Taping

Door, Hardware, Glass Install

Prime & First Coat Paint

MEP Overhead Demo & Rework

Inspection - Above Ceiling MEP

Ceiling Grid Rework

Trim MEP Overhead

Reset Acoustic Ceiling Tile

HVAC BAS Graphic Interface

Test & Balance

Shelving Reinstall

Floor Prep

Flooring Install (Carpet & VCT)

Floor Base Install

Final Coat Paint

Construction Clean

Inspection - Final

Furniture Tie-in - Electrical

Collect Final Certicificate of Occupancy

Owner Furnished, Owner Installed Items:

Furniture/Equipment Delivery

Page 100 of 145



NPL - Tech Services 

Standard View

Print Date:  11/7/2018

Data Date:  11/6/2018

Page:  4 of  4Revision Number:  

Revision Comments:

Revision Date:

1

Revised per 11.02.2018 Meeting

11/2/2018

Line
Task

Number
Activity Name Duration Start Finish

2018 2019
Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

24 8 22 5 19 3 17 31 14 28 11 25 11 25 8 22 6 20 3 17
76

77

78

79

80

81

82

83

84

0381

0502

0391

0392

0393

0394

0395

0396

0397

Furniture Install

Equipment Install & Testing

A/V Install & Screening

Final Clean

Owner Occupanacy - Move-in
Day

Punchlist

A/E Punchlist Review

Punch List Completion

Close-out Documents

3d

2d

2d

1d

1d

4d

1d

2d

30d

05/03/19

05/03/19

05/08/19

05/08/19

05/10/19

05/01/19

05/01/19

05/03/19

05/07/19

05/07/19

05/06/19

05/09/19

05/08/19

05/10/19

05/06/19

05/01/19

05/06/19

06/18/19

Furniture Install

Equipment Install & Testing

A/V Install & Screening

Final Clean

Owner Occupanacy - Move-in Day

Punchlist

A/E Punchlist Review

Punch List Completion

Close-out Documents

Furniture Install

Equipment Install & Testing

A/V Install & Screening

Final Clean

Owner Occupanacy - Move-in Day

Punchlist

A/E Punchlist Review

Punch List Completion

+ +
Close-out Documents

-1d

Page 101 of 145



U
P

cover sheet

A0.0

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 IN
D

E
X
:

I
N

T
E

R
I
O

R
 
R

E
N

O
V

A
T

I
O

N

P
R

O
J
E
C

T
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
T
IO

N
:

I
N

T
E

R
I
O

R
 
R

E
N

O
V

A
T

I
O

N
 
T

O
 
E

X
I
S

T
I
N

G
 
L
I
B

R
A

R
Y

 
T

E
C

H
 
S

E
R

V
I
C

E
S

 
A

N
D

 
M

A
I
N

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 
D

E
P

T
S

.
.

I
N

T
E

R
I
O

R
 
T

O
 
I
N

C
L
U

D
E

 
N

E
W

 
C

A
R

P
E

T
,
 
A

N
D

 
F

I
N

I
S

H
E

S
.

P
R

O
J
E
C

T
:

N
o

r
t
h

b
r
o

o
k
 
P

u
b

l
i
c

L
i
b

r
a

r
y

1
2

0
1

 
C

e
d

e
r
 
L

n
,
 
N

o
r
t
h

b
r
o

o
k
,
 
I
L

 
6

0
0

6
2

A
P

P
L
I
C

A
B

L
E

 
C

O
D

E
S

:

2
0

1
2

 
I
N

T
E

R
N

A
T

I
O

N
A

L
 
B

U
I
L

D
I
N

G
 
C

O
D

E

2
0

1
2

 
I
N

T
E

R
N

A
T

I
O

N
A

L
 
F

I
R

E
 
C

O
D

E

2
0

1
2

 
I
N

T
E

R
N

A
T

I
O

N
A

L
 
M

E
C

H
A

N
I
C

A
L

 
C

O
D

E

2
0

1
2

 
F

U
E

L
 
G

A
S

 
C

O
D

E

2
0

1
2

 
I
N

T
E

R
N

A
T

I
O

N
A

L
 
M

E
C

H
A

N
I
C

A
L

 
 
C

O
D

E

2
0

1
5

 
I
N

T
E

R
N

A
T

I
O

N
A

L
 
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 
M

A
I
N

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 
C

O
D

E

2
0

1
1

 
N

A
T

I
O

N
A

L
 
E

L
E

C
T

R
I
C

 
C

O
D

E

2
0

1
5

 
I
N

T
E

R
N

A
T

I
O

N
A

L
 
E

N
E

R
G

Y
 
C

O
N

S
E

R
V

A
T

I
O

N
 
C

O
D

E

2
0

1
4

 
I
L

L
I
N

O
I
S

 
P

L
U

M
B

I
N

G
 
C

O
D

E

2
0

0
0

 
N

F
P

A
 
L

I
F

E
 
S

A
F

E
T

Y
 
C

O
D

E

I
L

L
I
N

O
I
S

 
A

C
C

E
S

S
I
B

I
L

I
T

Y
 
C

O
D

E
 
(
S

T
A

T
E

 
M

A
N

D
A

T
E

D
)

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 IN
F
O

R
M

A
T
IO

N
:

I HAVE PREPARED, OR CAUSED TO BE PREPARED UNDER MY DIRECT
SUPERVISION, THE ATTACHED PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS AND STATE
THAT, TO THE BEST OF MY KNOW

LEDGE AND BELIEF AND TO THE
EXTENT OF MY CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS, THEY ARE IN
COMPLIANCE W

ITH THE STATE OF ILLINOIS ACCESSIBILITY CODE AND
THAT THEY COMPLY W

ITH THE CODES AND BUILDING ORDINANCE OF
THE VILLAGE OF NORTHBROOK, ILLINOIS.

SIGNED: ________________________________________
ILLINOIS REGISTRATION NUMBER: _________________
DATE:____________________________

S
T
A
T
E
M

E
N

T
 O

F
 C

O
M

P
L
IA

N
C

E
:

A
R

C
H

IT
E
C

T
:

P
R

O
D

U
C

T

A
R

C
H

I
T

E
C

T
U

R
E

 
+

 
D

E
S

I
G

N

8
1
1
 
W

E
S

T
 
E

V
E

R
G

R
E

E
N

S
U

I
T

E
 
4
0
5

C
H

I
C

A
G

O
,
 
I
L
 
6
0
6
4
2

T
 
(
3
1
2
)
 
2
0
2
-
0
7
0
1

F
 
(
8
6
6
)
 
8
5
7
-
7
2
6
5

M
E
P
 F

P
:

B
U

I
L

D
I
N

G
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G

S
Y

S
T

E
M

S
,
 
L

L
C

J
I
M

 
B

E
S

S

4
4

4
 
N

.
 
W

E
L

L
S

 
S

T
.

S
U

I
T

E
 
4

0
1

C
H

I
C

A
G

O
,
 
I
L

 
6

0
6

5
4

T
 
(
3

1
2

)
 
8

3
6

-
0

5
9

5

V
IC

IN
IT

Y
 M

A
P
:

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 
N

O
T

E
S

:

R
E

F
L
E

C
T

E
D

 
C

E
I
L
I
N

G
 
N

O
T

E
S

:

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N
 
N

O
T

E
S

:

F
I
N

I
S

H
 
N

O
T

E
S

:

D
E

M
O

L
I
T

I
O

N
 
N

O
T

E
S

:

L
O

C
A
T
IO

N
 M

A
P
:

C
O

N
S

T
. M

N
G

R
.

001-016586

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
I
N

F
O

R
M

A
T

I
O

N
:

Z
O

N
I
N

G
:
 
O

/
R

-
1
 
O

F
F

I
C

E
/
R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N
 
T

Y
P

E
:
 
I
-
B

S
P

R
I
N

K
L

E
D

:
 
Y

E
S

A
R

C
H

I
T

E
C

T
U

R
A

L
:

A
0

.
0

C
O

V
E

R
 
S

H
E

E
T

 
A

N
D

 
N

O
T

E
S

D
1

.
0

 
 
D

E
M

O
L

I
T

I
O

N
 
L

E
V

E
L

 
1

 
P

L
A

N
S

,
D

O
O

R
 
T

Y
P

E
S

,
 
D

O
O

R
 
D

E
T

A
I
L

S
,

A
N

D
 
D

O
O

R
 
S

C
H

E
D

U
L

E

A
2

.
0

 
 
N

E
W

 
L

E
V

E
L

 
1

 
P

L
A

N
S

 
A

N
D

 
E

L
E

V
A

T
I
O

N
S

,
 
W

A
L

L
 
T

Y
P

E
S

P
E

P
P

E
R

 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N

C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
,
 
L

L
C

6
4
3
 
N

 
O

R
L
E

A
N

S
 
S

T
.

C
H

I
C

A
G

O
,
 
I
L
 
6
0
6
5
4

T
 
(
8
4
7
)
 
6
2
0
-
4
0
5
3

N

M
E

C
H

A
N

I
C

A
L

,
 
E

L
E

C
T

R
I
C

A
L

,
 
F

I
R

E
 
P

R
O

T
E

C
T

I
O

N

E
1

.
0

 
E

L
E

C
T

R
I
C

A
L

 
D

E
M

O
L

I
T

I
O

N
 
P

L
A

N
S

E
2

.
0

 
E

L
E

C
T

R
I
C

A
L

 
N

E
W

 
P

L
A

N
S

N

L
E
V
E
L
 1

 L
O

C
A
T
IO

N
 P

L
A
N

:
N

p
r
o

d
u

c
t

architecture + design

811 w. evergreen ave.
suite 405

chicago,il 60642

ph: (312) 202-0701
fax: (866) 857-7265

d
e
s
c
r
i
p
t
i
o
n

i
s
s
u
e
 
d
a
t
e

s
t
a
m
p
:

Northbrook Public Library

1201 Ceder Ln.
Northbrook, Il 60062

drawing:project:

p
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
n
u
m
b
e
r
:

1
8
0
8

d
r
a
w
i
n
g
 
s
c
a
l
e
:

1
'
-
0
"
=
x
x
x

d
r
a
w
n
 
b
y
:

M
B
R

d
a
t
e
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
:

-

sheet num
ber:sheet

of

a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
b
y
:

T
L
N

Page 102 of 145

AutoCAD SHX Text
POLLAK  ROOM A

AutoCAD SHX Text
POLLAK  ROOM A

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE STAIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAFE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST VEST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIRCULATION DESK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV. EQUIP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEC. ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIRC.  MANAGER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIRCULATION WORK ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAFF LOUNGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELE. ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHILLER ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
RR

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENERATOR ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECTION ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SND/LT LOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUD. VEST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOMEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOMEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOILER ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPUTER ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
R.R.

AutoCAD SHX Text
R.R.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TECH. SERVICES

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE STAIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST VEST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRIENDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUMP RM.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATA ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREEN RM.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLATFORM

AutoCAD SHX Text
COPIER ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOBBY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOAN OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AFTER HOURS GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEC.PANELS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE PUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
RACKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SERVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
RETURN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TV DISPLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEC

AutoCAD SHX Text
BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WALLS TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WALLS TO BE DEMOLISHED & REMOVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW BUILDING PARTITION   

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL SECTION TAG

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOOR TAG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL TYPE TAG

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETAIL TAG

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEMO. TAG

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
100A

AutoCAD SHX Text
DXX

AutoCAD SHX Text
AX.X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
AX.X

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)    EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R)    RELOCATED

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N)    NEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
VIF    VERIFY IN FIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIN.   FINISHED FACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLG   CEILING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL    FLOORING

AutoCAD SHX Text
CPT   CARPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PT    PAINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
VB    VINYL BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. PRIOR TO SUBMITTING BID, CONTRACTOR SHALL VISIT THE SITE TO PRIOR TO SUBMITTING BID, CONTRACTOR SHALL VISIT THE SITE TO EXAMINE THE EXISTING CONDITIONS.  ANY DISCREPANCIES  ARE TO BE POINTED OUT  PRIOR TO SUBMITTING BID OR SHALL BE NOTED IN THE BID FORMS.  NO PLEA OF IGNORANCE OF EXISTING CONDITIONS SHALL JUSTIFY REQUESTS FOR ADDITIONAL FUNDS.  COMMENCEMENT OF WORK SHALL CONSTITUTE ACCEPTANCE OF EXISTING CONDITIONS.  2. PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS ARE INTENDED TO BE COMPLIMENTARY.  PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS ARE INTENDED TO BE COMPLIMENTARY.  ANY WORK EXHIBITED IN EITHER OF THEM WHETHER IN THE OTHER OR NOT, IS TO BE EXECUTED ACCORDING TO THE TRUE INTENT AND MEANING THEREOF THE SAME AS IF SET FORTH IN ALL.  PROVIDED, HOWEVER, THAT SHOULD ANY LAW, ORDINANCE, OR REGULATION OF STATE, OR COUNTY, OR CITY, IN WHICH THE WORK IS TO BE DONE, BE IN VIOLATION OF THE REQUIREMENTS OF ANY SUCH LAW OR ORDINANCES, OR REGULATION, THEN THE REQUIREMENT OF SUCH LAWS, ORDINANCES, OR REGULATIONS SHALL PREVAIL AND SHALL BE COMPLIED WITH BY CONTRACTOR AS A PART OF HIS WORK CALLED FOR AND NO EXTRA COMPENSATION SHALL BE ALLOWED THEREFORE.  3. ALL CONTRACTORS SHALL VISIT AND CAREFULLY EXAMINE SITE OF ALL CONTRACTORS SHALL VISIT AND CAREFULLY EXAMINE SITE OF PROPOSED WORK AND ACQUAINT THEMSELVES WITH THE CONDITIONS UNDER WHICH WORK WILL BE PERFORMED AND NATURE AND EXTENT OF WORK INVOLVED.  4. BEFORE COMMENCEMENT OF WORK THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY BEFORE COMMENCEMENT OF WORK THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY DIMENSIONS AND CONDITIONS SHOWN IN THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.  ANY DEVIATIONS, DISCREPANCIES AND/OR CONFLICTS SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF THE ARCHITECT.  5. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MEET WITH THE CONSTRUCTION MANAGER THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MEET WITH THE CONSTRUCTION MANAGER PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION ON THIS PROJECT AND AT OTHER TIMES AS REQUIRED BY OWNER VERIFY AND REVIEW OWNER'S REGULATIONS AND BUILDING PROCEDURES. INSTALLATION OF TEMPORARY BARRICADES IN PUBLIC AREAS  OF THE BUILDING MUST MEET WITH THE OWNER'S APPROVAL.  6. SUBSTITUTIONS OF MATERIALS OR EQUIPMENT WHERE SPECIFIED HEREIN SUBSTITUTIONS OF MATERIALS OR EQUIPMENT WHERE SPECIFIED HEREIN OR ON DRAWINGS ARE NOT ACCEPTABLE UNLESS WRITTEN APPROVAL HAS BEEN OBTAINED FROM THE ARCHITECT AND/OR OWNER.  7. ALL MATERIALS, METHODS OF INSTALLATION, AND FINISHING OF ALL MATERIALS, METHODS OF INSTALLATION, AND FINISHING OF CONSTRUCTION SYSTEMS (PARTITIONS, CEILING, DOORS, FRAMES, FLOORS, ETC.) SHALL CONFORM TO THE MANUFACTURERS' SPECIFICATIONS AND INSTALLATION INSTRUCTIONS FOR THE  EXPECTED USE.  8. ALL WALL FINISHES AND CEILING TILE FINISHES TO MEET CLASS 1 ALL WALL FINISHES AND CEILING TILE FINISHES TO MEET CLASS 1 FLAME SPREAD RATINGS.  ALL FLOOR COVERINGS NOT TO EXCEED 75 (MAX). 9. CONTRACTOR SHALL TURN THE PROJECT OVER TO OWNER FREE FROM CONTRACTOR SHALL TURN THE PROJECT OVER TO OWNER FREE FROM ALL CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS, MATERIAL AND EQUIPMENT. ALL INTERIOR GLASS SHALL BE FREE FROM LABELS AND CLEANED ON BOTH SIDES. ALL MILLWORK AND BUILT-INS SHALL BE FREE FROM DIRT, GREASE AND OTHER FOREIGN MATERIALS. ALL FLOORINGS SHALL BE CLEANED. 10. EACH TRADE IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE DAILY REMOVAL OF EACH TRADE IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE DAILY REMOVAL OF CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS TO DUMPSTER PROVIDED BY THE CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AND SHALL THOROUGHLY CLEAN AND REMOVE ALL DEBRIS.  11. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE HIS WORK WITH THE WORK OF OTHER CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE HIS WORK WITH THE WORK OF OTHER CONTRACTORS, WHETHER HIS OWN, OR THOSE ON SEPARATE CONTRACT.  12. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY  CONSTRUCTION MANAGER OF ANY CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY  CONSTRUCTION MANAGER OF ANY UNFORESEEN JOB CONDITIONS WHICH MIGHT AFFECT PROJECT COSTS.  EXTRA WORK AND/OR COSTS MUST BE APPROVED IN WRITING PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION OF SUCH WORK.  13. NOTHING IN THESE DRAWINGS SHALL IMPOSE LIABILITY ON THE NOTHING IN THESE DRAWINGS SHALL IMPOSE LIABILITY ON THE ARCHITECT FOR CLAIMS, LAWSUITS, EXPENSE, OR DAMAGES ARISING FROM, OR IN ANY MANNER RELATED TO THE EXPOSURE TO, OR THE HANDLING, MANUFACTURE, OR DISPOSAL OF ASBESTOS, ASBESTOS PRODUCT, OR HAZARDOUS WASTE IN ANY OF ITS VARIOUS FORMS,(IF THEY EXIST) DEFINED BY THE ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY.  14. ALL WORK IN THIS CONTRACT SHALL BE GUARANTEED AGAINST ANY ALL WORK IN THIS CONTRACT SHALL BE GUARANTEED AGAINST ANY DEFECTIVE MATERIALS OF WORKMANSHIP FOR ONE YEAR AFTER DATE OF FINAL COMPLETION. ANY DEFECTIVE MATERIAL OR WORKMANSHIP SHALL BE REPLACED AT NO COST TO THE OWNER. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. INSTALL ALL MATERIALS AND SYSTEMS IN ACCORDANCE WITH MANUFACTURERS' INSTALL ALL MATERIALS AND SYSTEMS IN ACCORDANCE WITH MANUFACTURERS' SPECIFICATIONS AND ALL LOCAL AND STATE CODES WHICH  HAVE AUTHORITY OVER THIS WORK.  2. FINAL DETERMINATION OF QUALITY AND LOCATION REQUIREMENTS OF EXIT SIGNS IS FINAL DETERMINATION OF QUALITY AND LOCATION REQUIREMENTS OF EXIT SIGNS IS SUBJECT TO APPROVAL OF THE BUREAU OF FIRE PREVENTION OF THE MUNICIPAL AGENCY HAVING JURISDICTION. 3. COORDINATE THE SPACING OF ALL HANGERS, CARRYING CHANNELS, RUNNERS, AND COORDINATE THE SPACING OF ALL HANGERS, CARRYING CHANNELS, RUNNERS, AND MOLDING WITH THE LOCATION OF ELECTRICAL FIXTURES AND OTHER ITEMS OCCURING IN OR ON THE CEILING.  4. IF CEILING DIFFUSERS, LIGHT FIXTURES OR OTHER ELEMENTS ON OR ABOVE THE IF CEILING DIFFUSERS, LIGHT FIXTURES OR OTHER ELEMENTS ON OR ABOVE THE CEILING CANNOT BE LOCATED AS SHOWN ON THE DRAWINGS, SUCH CONFLICT SHALL BE REPORTED IMMEDIATELY TO THE ARCHITECT FOR RELOCATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. WHERE DEMOLITION OCCURS, ALL REMAINING WALLS ARE TO BE PATCHED, WHERE DEMOLITION OCCURS, ALL REMAINING WALLS ARE TO BE PATCHED, SANDED SMOOTH AND PRE- PARED FOR FINISHING AS REQUIRED.  PATCH AND REPAIR FLOORS AS REQUIRED FOR SMOOTH, LEVEL FINISH.  2. WHERE EXISTING WALL FINISHES ARE TO BE REMOVED, WALLS ARE TO BE WHERE EXISTING WALL FINISHES ARE TO BE REMOVED, WALLS ARE TO BE PATCHED, SANDED SMOOTH AND PREPARED FOR NEW FINISHES AS REQUIRED.  3. WHERE NEW PARTITION MEETS EXISTING FURRED COLUMN OR CORE WALL, WHERE NEW PARTITION MEETS EXISTING FURRED COLUMN OR CORE WALL, REMOVE CORNER BEAD, ALIGN, TAPE, AND BLEND NEW PARTITION TO EXISTING GYPSUM BOARD.  4. ALL CONSTRUCTION TO REMAIN AND AFFECTED BY DEMOLITION SHALL BE ALL CONSTRUCTION TO REMAIN AND AFFECTED BY DEMOLITION SHALL BE PATCHED, BLENDED AND CONSTRUCTED SO AS TO LEAVE NO EVIDENCE OF PATCHING OR REPAIRS.  5. EXISTING ELECTRICAL AND TELEPHONE OUTLETS LOCATED ON DEMOLISHED EXISTING ELECTRICAL AND TELEPHONE OUTLETS LOCATED ON DEMOLISHED WALLS ARE TO BE REMOVED INCLUDING CONDUIT AND WIRING BACK TO ACCESSIBLE JUNCTION BOX.  6. ALL EXISTING CONSTRUCTION WHERE INDICATED INCLUDING ELECTRICAL, ALL EXISTING CONSTRUCTION WHERE INDICATED INCLUDING ELECTRICAL, TELEPHONE, AND MECHANICAL DEVICES NOT OTHERWISE INDICATED ON THESE CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS SHALL BE REMOVED IN A CAREFUL MANNER SO AS NOT TO DAMAGE ADJOINING CONSTRUCTION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. CONTRACTORS SHALL VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS AND CONDITIONS SHOWN ON CONTRACTORS SHALL VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS AND CONDITIONS SHOWN ON DRAWINGS AT THE SITE, AND SHALL NOTIFY THE ARCHITECT OF ANY DISCREPANCIES, OMISSIONS AND/OR CONFLICTS BEFORE PROCEEDING WITH THE WORK.  2. DO NOT SCALE DRAWINGS;  DIMENSIONS SHALL GOVERN.  LARGE SCALE DO NOT SCALE DRAWINGS;  DIMENSIONS SHALL GOVERN.  LARGE SCALE DETAILS SHALL GOVERN OVER SMALL SCALE DETAILS.  3. ALL WORK SHALL BE PERFORMED IN STRICT COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LOCAL ALL WORK SHALL BE PERFORMED IN STRICT COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LOCAL ORDINANCES AND BUILDING CODES.  4. PARTITIONS SHALL BE DIMENSIONED FROM FINISH TO FINISH, UNLESS PARTITIONS SHALL BE DIMENSIONED FROM FINISH TO FINISH, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.  5. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR BRACING OF PARTITION WALLS CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR BRACING OF PARTITION WALLS AND DOOR OPENINGS, AS REQUIRED.  6. ALL PARTITION ENDS TO BE FLUSH AND STRAIGHT WITH METAL CORNER ALL PARTITION ENDS TO BE FLUSH AND STRAIGHT WITH METAL CORNER BEADS.  CEMENT, TAPE, AND BLEND DRYWALL PARTITION ENDS.  7. ALL EXISTING WALLS, COLUMNS, ETC., THAT ARE TO REMAIN SHALL BE ALL EXISTING WALLS, COLUMNS, ETC., THAT ARE TO REMAIN SHALL BE PATCHED AND BLENDED AS REQUIRED TO MAKE THEM STRAIGHT, TRUE, AND FLUSH WITH NEW CONSTRUCTION, AND SUITABLE FOR A GOOD PAINT JOB.  SAME SHALL MATCH NEW  8. WHERE NEW WORK CONNECTS WITH EXISTING, THE  CONTRACTOR SHALL DO WHERE NEW WORK CONNECTS WITH EXISTING, THE  CONTRACTOR SHALL DO ALL NECESSARY CUTTING, FITTING, AND PATCHING.  HE SHALL FURNISH ALL NECESSARY LABOR AND MATERIALS FOR THIS WORK, WHETHER OR NOT SHOWN AND/OR SPECIFIED.  ALL CONSTRUCTION TO REMAIN SHALL BE PATCHED, REPAIRED, AND PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED SO AS TO LEAVE NO EVIDENCE OF REMODELING AND DEMOLITION WORK.  9. ALL NEW WALLS ARE TO ALIGN AND TO BE LEVEL WITH EXISTING ADJACENT ALL NEW WALLS ARE TO ALIGN AND TO BE LEVEL WITH EXISTING ADJACENT WALLS AND CONDITIONS UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE. PROVIDE THE PROPER LOCK CYLINDERS AS REQUIRED TO CONFORM TO THE BUILDING OWNER'S MASTER KEY SYSTEM AS PART OF BASE BID.  ALL BUILT-IN PLUMBING FIXTURES TO BE          SUPPLIED AND INSTALLED BY PLUMBING CONTRACTOR.  PLUMBING CONTRACTOR TO SUPPLY ALL NECESSARY INFORMATION FOR CUT-OUTS TO BE PERFORMED BY CABINET CONTRACTOR.  10. CUT OPENINGS IN WALL BOARD FOR ELECTRICAL OUTLETS, PIPING, CUT OPENINGS IN WALL BOARD FOR ELECTRICAL OUTLETS, PIPING, DUCTWORK, AND OTHER PENETRATIONS.  MAINTAIN CLOSE TOLERANCES (NOT TO EXCEED 1/4") SO THAT EDGES WILL BE COVERED BY PLATES AND ESCUTCHEONS.  CUT BOTH FACE AND BACK PAPER.  DO NOT INSTALL ELECTRICAL OUTLETS BACK-TO-BACK ON OPPOSING SIDES OF PARTITIONS.  11. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR BLOCKING OFF SUPPLY AND CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR BLOCKING OFF SUPPLY AND RETURN GRILLES, DIFFUSERS, AND DUCTS TO KEEP DUST FROM ENTERING INTO THE BUIDING SYSTEM DURING CONSTRUCTION. ALL FILTERS SHALL BE CHANGED AT SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. PAINTING CONTRACTOR SHALL EXAMINE EXISTING CONDITIONS AND REPORT ALL IRREGULARITIES PAINTING CONTRACTOR SHALL EXAMINE EXISTING CONDITIONS AND REPORT ALL IRREGULARITIES IMMEDIATELY TO THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR.  COMMENCEMENT OF WORK SHALL INDICATE ACCEPTANCE OF EXISTING SURFACE.  2. ALL PAINT SHALL BE APPLIED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATION FOR ALL PAINT SHALL BE APPLIED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATION FOR TYPE OF PAINT AND SURFACE CONDITIONS.  3. SAMPLE OF ALL FINISH COLORS SPECIFIED SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO OWNER FOR APPROVAL PRIOR SAMPLE OF ALL FINISH COLORS SPECIFIED SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO OWNER FOR APPROVAL PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORK.  4. ALL WALL AND CEILING FINISHES TO HAVE CLASS 1 SPREAD RATING.  ALL WALL AND CEILING FINISHES TO HAVE CLASS 1 SPREAD RATING.  5. FLASH PATCH ALL AREAS WHERE FLOOR IS NOT LEVEL OR TRUE, PRIOR TO FLOOR INSTALLATION.  FLASH PATCH ALL AREAS WHERE FLOOR IS NOT LEVEL OR TRUE, PRIOR TO FLOOR INSTALLATION.  6. PROVIDE AND INSTALL ALL TILE FLOORING IN ACCORDANCE WITH MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS.  PROVIDE AND INSTALL ALL TILE FLOORING IN ACCORDANCE WITH MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS.  7. FLAME SPREAD RATING OF ALL INTERIOR FLOOR COVERINGS TO BE 75 OR LESS.  FLAME SPREAD RATING OF ALL INTERIOR FLOOR COVERINGS TO BE 75 OR LESS.  8. PROTECT ALL WORK FINISHED UNDER THIS SECTION AND ALL ADJACENT WORK AND MATERIALS PROTECT ALL WORK FINISHED UNDER THIS SECTION AND ALL ADJACENT WORK AND MATERIALS WITH SUITABLE COVERINGS OR OTHER METHOD DURING PROGRESS OF THE PAINTING WORK.  9. FILL FASTENER HOLES WITH SUITABLE FILLER. REMOVE ALL PAINT SPATTER FROM GLASS, FLOORS, FILL FASTENER HOLES WITH SUITABLE FILLER. REMOVE ALL PAINT SPATTER FROM GLASS, FLOORS, AND OTHER FINISHED SURFACES.  10. CLEAN ALL SURFACES TO BE FINISHED AS  REQUIRED TO REMOVE OIL, GREASE, DUST, AND DIRT.  CLEAN ALL SURFACES TO BE FINISHED AS  REQUIRED TO REMOVE OIL, GREASE, DUST, AND DIRT.  SAND WHERE NECESSARY AND AT EXISTING PAINTED SURFACES TO PROPERLY PREPARE SURFACES TO RECEIVE FINISH.  11. FINAL COATS SHALL NOT BE APPLIED UNTIL AFTER WORK FROM OTHER TRADE WHOSE OPERATIONS FINAL COATS SHALL NOT BE APPLIED UNTIL AFTER WORK FROM OTHER TRADE WHOSE OPERATIONS WOULD BE DETRIMENTAL TO FINISH PAINTING ARE COMPLETE IN THE AREAS TO BE PAINTED.  12. WHERE NEW WORK CONNECTS WITH EXISTING, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL DO ALL NECESSARY WHERE NEW WORK CONNECTS WITH EXISTING, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL DO ALL NECESSARY CUTTING, FITTING AND PATCHING.  HE SHALL FURNISH ALL NECESSARY LABOR AND MATERIALS FOR THIS WORK, WHETHER OR NOT SHOWN OR SPECIFIED.  13. WORKMANSHIP SHALL BE FIRST CLASS IN EVERY RESPECT WITH ALL MATERIALS EVENLY SPREAD WORKMANSHIP SHALL BE FIRST CLASS IN EVERY RESPECT WITH ALL MATERIALS EVENLY SPREAD AND SMOOTHLY FLOWED ON WITHOUT RUNS AND SAGS.    14. CONTRACTOR SHALL PREPARE ALL FLOOR SURFACES AS PER FLOORING MANUFACTURER'S CONTRACTOR SHALL PREPARE ALL FLOOR SURFACES AS PER FLOORING MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS PRIOR TO INSTALLATION OF NEW FLOOR FINISH INCLUDE ALL REQUIRED LEVELING. 15. PROVIDE AND INSTALL ALL FLOORING MATERIALS IN ACCORDANCE WITH MANUFACTURER'S PROVIDE AND INSTALL ALL FLOORING MATERIALS IN ACCORDANCE WITH MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AX.X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEVATION TAG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDOW TAG

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX



w
i
n

d
o

w
 
h

e
a

d
 
d

e
t
a

i
l

s
c
a
l
e
:
 
1

12

"
 
=

 
1
'
-
0
"

3

d
o

o
r
 
h

e
a

d
 
d

e
t
a

i
l

s
c
a

l
e

:
 
1

1

2

"
 
=

 
1

'
-
0

"

4

s
c
a
l
e
:
 
1

12

"
 
=

 
1
'
-
0
"

5

w
i
n
d
o
w

 
j
a
m

b
 
d
e
t
a
i
l

s
c
a
l
e
:
 
1

12

"
 
=

 
1
'
-
0
"

6

d
o

o
r
 
j
a

m
b

 
d

e
t
a

i
l

p
r
o

d
u

c
t

architecture + design

811 w. evergreen ave.
suite 405

chicago,il 60642

ph: (312) 202-0701
fax: (866) 857-7265

d
e
s
c
r
i
p
t
i
o
n

i
s
s
u
e
 
d
a
t
e

s
t
a
m
p
:

Northbrook Public Library

1201 Ceder Ln.
Northbrook, Il 60062

drawing:project:

p
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
n
u
m
b
e
r
:

1
8
0
8

d
r
a
w
i
n
g
 
s
c
a
l
e
:

1
'
-
0
"
=
x
x
x

d
r
a
w
n
 
b
y
:

M
B
R

d
a
t
e
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
:

-

sheet num
ber:sheet

of

a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
b
y
:

T
L
N

p
l
a

n
:
 
d

e
m

o
l
i
t
i
o

n

s
c
a

l
e

:
 
1

/
8

"
=

1
'
-
0

"

1

demolition plans, door details, door
types, frame types, door schedule

r
e

f
l
e

c
t
e

d
 
c
e

i
l
i
n

g
 
p

l
a

n
:
 
d

e
m

o
l
i
t
i
o

n

s
c
a

l
e

:
 
1

/
8

"
=

1
'
-
0

"

2

A1.0

d
o

o
r
 
t
y
p

e
s

s
c
a

l
e

:
 
1

/
4

"
=

1
'
-
0

"

7

f
r
a

m
e

 
t
y
p

e
s

s
c
a

l
e

:
 
1

/
4

"
=

1
'
-
0

"

8

Page 103 of 145

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEC

AutoCAD SHX Text
BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text
D1

AutoCAD SHX Text
D1

AutoCAD SHX Text
D2

AutoCAD SHX Text
D3

AutoCAD SHX Text
D4

AutoCAD SHX Text
D5

AutoCAD SHX Text
D5

AutoCAD SHX Text
D5

AutoCAD SHX Text
D7

AutoCAD SHX Text
D7

AutoCAD SHX Text
D7

AutoCAD SHX Text
D7

AutoCAD SHX Text
D8

AutoCAD SHX Text
D9

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D10

AutoCAD SHX Text
D4

AutoCAD SHX Text
D4

AutoCAD SHX Text
D11

AutoCAD SHX Text
D12

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEMOLITION NOTES: D1. DEMOLISH EXISTING WALLS INCLUDING ALL PLATES, FRAMING & BRACING. REMOVE ALL     DEMOLISH EXISTING WALLS INCLUDING ALL PLATES, FRAMING & BRACING. REMOVE ALL        VOICE/DATA/ELECTRICAL BACK TO SOURCE UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE. D2. REMOVE EXISTING DOOR, FRAME & ANY ASSOCIATED GLAZING. PATCH AND REPAIR PORTION OF  REMOVE EXISTING DOOR, FRAME & ANY ASSOCIATED GLAZING. PATCH AND REPAIR PORTION OF  PATCH AND REPAIR PORTION OF  EXISTING WALL. RETURN HARDWARE OWNER. D3. DEMO EXISTING MILLWORK AND PLUMBING FIXTURES. ALL ASSOCIATED, PIPING, WASTE/SUPPLY OR DEMO EXISTING MILLWORK AND PLUMBING FIXTURES. ALL ASSOCIATED, PIPING, WASTE/SUPPLY OR CLEANOUTS TO REMAIN FOR NEW FIXTURES. SEE NEW PLAN FOR MORE INFORMATION. REPAIR ANY DAMAGE TO ADJACENT/ABUT WALL SURFACES TO REMAIN DUE TO REMOVAL OF THE MILLWORK. D4. DEMOLISH EXISTING MILLWORK. REPAIR ANY DAMAGE TO ADJACENT/ABUT WALL AND STANDARDS DEMOLISH EXISTING MILLWORK. REPAIR ANY DAMAGE TO ADJACENT/ABUT WALL AND STANDARDS D5. REMOVE EXISTING WALL MOUNTED SHELVES. SALVAGE FOR REUSE. TYP. THIS AREA. REMOVE EXISTING WALL MOUNTED SHELVES. SALVAGE FOR REUSE. TYP. THIS AREA. D6. DEMOLISH EXISTING CANOPY SHELVING AND END PANELS, SALVAGE FOR REUSE. TYP. THIS AREA. DEMOLISH EXISTING CANOPY SHELVING AND END PANELS, SALVAGE FOR REUSE. TYP. THIS AREA. D7. REMOVE EXISTING CARPET AND REPAIR/PREPARE SURFACE FOR NEW FLOORING. TYP. THIS AREA REMOVE EXISTING CARPET AND REPAIR/PREPARE SURFACE FOR NEW FLOORING. TYP. THIS AREA D8. BREAK EXISTING BASEBOARD RADIATOR AT LOCATION OF NEW WALL; PROVIDE NEW BREAK EXISTING BASEBOARD RADIATOR AT LOCATION OF NEW WALL; PROVIDE NEW COVER TO MATCH EXISTING D9. SELECTIVE DEMO OF EXISTING WALL FOR RELOCATED DOOR. SEE ASSOCIATED DIMENSIONS FOR EXTENT OF SELECTIVE DEMO OF EXISTING WALL FOR RELOCATED DOOR. SEE ASSOCIATED DIMENSIONS FOR EXTENT OF WALL TO REMAIN/BE REMOVED. D.10 RELOCATE EXISTING LIGHT SWITCH. SEE NEW PLAN FOR NEW LOCATION AND E SHEETS FOR MORE RELOCATE EXISTING LIGHT SWITCH. SEE NEW PLAN FOR NEW LOCATION AND E SHEETS FOR MORE INFORMATION. D.11 DEMO PORTION OF EXISTING WALL FOR INSTALLATION OF NEW DOOR. DEMO PORTION OF EXISTING WALL FOR INSTALLATION OF NEW DOOR. D12 REMOVE EXISTING FLOOR BOX. PROVIDE NEW COVER PLATE UNDER NEW FLOORING. REMOVE EXISTING FLOOR BOX. PROVIDE NEW COVER PLATE UNDER NEW FLOORING.     

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ACT CEILING  @ 8'-11" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
C3

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
C4

AutoCAD SHX Text
C4

AutoCAD SHX Text
C4

AutoCAD SHX Text
C4

AutoCAD SHX Text
C4

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEMOLITION NOTES CEILING PLAN DEMOLITION NOTES: C1. EXISTING ACT CEILING TO REMAIN AND BE PROTECTED THROUGHOUT EXISTING ACT CEILING TO REMAIN AND BE PROTECTED THROUGHOUT CONSTRUCTION.  C2. SELECTIVE DEMOLITION OF EXISTING ACOUSTICAL CEILING GRID. SEE NEW SELECTIVE DEMOLITION OF EXISTING ACOUSTICAL CEILING GRID. SEE NEW PLAN FOR NEW WALL LOCATIONS TO LOCATE TILES TO REMAIN. REMOVE FULL TILE. C3. EXISTING SPEAKER TO BE REMOVED AND RELOCATED. SEE NEW RCP FOR EXISTING SPEAKER TO BE REMOVED AND RELOCATED. SEE NEW RCP FOR NEW LOCATIONS C4. EXISTING LIGHTING FIXTURE TO BE REMOVED AND RELOCATED. SEE NEW EXISTING LIGHTING FIXTURE TO BE REMOVED AND RELOCATED. SEE NEW CEILING PLAN FOR NEW LOCATIONS. C5. SEE NEW PLANS AND MECHANICAL SHEETS FOR LACTATION OF NEW SEE NEW PLANS AND MECHANICAL SHEETS FOR LACTATION OF NEW SPRAY BOOTH REQUIRING A NEW THROUGH WALL VENT TO THE EXTERIOR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENERAL DEMOLITION NOTES: (APPLIES TO ENTIRE SPACE/NOT NOTED) G1. DASHED LINE INDICATES EXTENT OF DEMOLITION WORK WHETHER NOTED OR NOT. THIS IS TYPICAL OF ALL DASHED LINE INDICATES EXTENT OF DEMOLITION WORK WHETHER NOTED OR NOT. THIS IS TYPICAL OF ALL DRAWINGS SHOWN ON D-SERIES SHEETS. G2.  PROTECT ALL THERMOSTATS AND RESTORE AS REQUIRED TO RETAIN EXISTING BALANCED ZONING. PROTECT ALL THERMOSTATS AND RESTORE AS REQUIRED TO RETAIN EXISTING BALANCED ZONING. G3.   ALL EXISTING FIRE EXISTINGUISHERS (FE) AND EMERGENCY LIGHTS(EM) TO REMAIN AND BE PROTECTED DURING ALL EXISTING FIRE EXISTINGUISHERS (FE) AND EMERGENCY LIGHTS(EM) TO REMAIN AND BE PROTECTED DURING THE DURATION OF CONSTRUCTION UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE. G4.   ALL EXISTING EXIT SIGNS TO REMAIN AND BE PROTECTED AND OPERATIONAL DURING CONSTRUCTION UNLESS ALL EXISTING EXIT SIGNS TO REMAIN AND BE PROTECTED AND OPERATIONAL DURING CONSTRUCTION UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE. G5.   ANY DEMOLITION REQUIRED FOR THE INSTALLATION OF NEW VOICE/DATA/ELECTRICAL OR OTHER DEVICES IN ANY DEMOLITION REQUIRED FOR THE INSTALLATION OF NEW VOICE/DATA/ELECTRICAL OR OTHER DEVICES IN EXISTING PARTITIONS IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE DEMOLITION SUB CONTRACTOR. IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE SUB CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE WITH THE M/E/P SERIES SHEETS TO UNDERSTAND THE FULL SCOPE OF WORK AND REQUIRED REPAIR DUE TO THE INSTALLATION AND/OR REMOVAL OF DEVICES. G6. ONCE EXISTING WALL PANELS, MILLWORK, OR EQUAL HAVE BEEN REMOVED, REMOVE ALL REMAINING ADHESIVE ONCE EXISTING WALL PANELS, MILLWORK, OR EQUAL HAVE BEEN REMOVED, REMOVE ALL REMAINING ADHESIVE AND OR BLOCKING AS REQUIRED FOR A SMOOTH FINISH. PATCH WALLS AS REQUIRED.  G7. PROTECT EXISTING FINISHES TO REMAIN, DAMAGE CAUSED BY NEGLIGENT DEMOLITION TO ADJACENT FINISHES PROTECT EXISTING FINISHES TO REMAIN, DAMAGE CAUSED BY NEGLIGENT DEMOLITION TO ADJACENT FINISHES WILL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE SUB CONTRACTOR. G8. REPAIR AS REQUIRED ANY DAMAGE TO EXISTING WALLS CAUSED BY THE REMOVAL OF ADJACENT WALLS. WALLS REPAIR AS REQUIRED ANY DAMAGE TO EXISTING WALLS CAUSED BY THE REMOVAL OF ADJACENT WALLS. WALLS SHALL BE REPAIRED TO AN EQUAL FINISH AS PART OF THE BASE BID. G9. DEMOLISHED LIGHT FIXTURES WITH 'R' DESIGNATION SHOULD BE SALVAGED FOR RELOCATION AND RE-USE. DEMOLISHED LIGHT FIXTURES WITH 'R' DESIGNATION SHOULD BE SALVAGED FOR RELOCATION AND RE-USE. G10. SALVAGE ALL CEILING TILES AND LIGHT FIXTURES FOR REUSE. SEE NEW RCP FOR MORE INFORMATION.SALVAGE ALL CEILING TILES AND LIGHT FIXTURES FOR REUSE. SEE NEW RCP FOR MORE INFORMATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL STUD TRACK JAMB TO JAMB

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" HOLLOW METAL FRAME (PT-X)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4" TEMPERED GLASS W/ CONTINUOUS NEOPRENE SEAL ALL 4-SIDES (GL-2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO STRUCTURE ABOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" GYP. BOARD EACH SIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL STUD TRACK JAMB TO JAMB

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" HOLLOW METAL FRAME (PT-7)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW DOOR - SEE SCHEDULE FOR MORE INFO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" GYP. BOARD EACH SIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO STRUCTURE ABOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" GYP. BOARD EACH SIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) STUDS @ JAMB CONTINUOUS TO STRUCTURE ABV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" HOLLOW METAL FRAME (PT-7)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4" TEMPERED GLASS W/ " TEMPERED GLASS W/  TEMPERED GLASS W/ CONTINUOUS NEOPRENE SEAL ALL 4-SIDES (GL-2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" GYP. BOARD EACH SIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) STUDS @ JAMB CONTINUOUS TO STRUCTURE ABV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" HOLLOW METAL FRAME (PT-7)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW DOOR - SEE DOOR SCHEDULE FOR MORE INFO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINTED SOLID CORE WOOD DOOR (PT-X)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINTED SOLID CORE WOOD DOOR W/  " 14" CLEAR TEMPERED GLASS (PT-X),  (GL-1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINTED SOLID CORE WOOD DOORS (PT-X)

AutoCAD SHX Text
14" CLEAR TEMPERED GLASS  

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
5 

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINTED, INTERIOR HOLLOW METAL FRAME (PT-X)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINTED, INTERIOR HOLLOW METAL FRAME (PT-X)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINTED, INTERIOR HOLLOW METAL FRAME (PT-X)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
14" CLEAR TEMPERED GLASS  

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHBROOK PUBLIC LIBRARY - DOOR SCHEDULE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOM NAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
101

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIDTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
7'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
THICKNESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATERIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATERIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
HMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
HARDWARE

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLOSER

AutoCAD SHX Text
YES

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
HMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAINTENANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
103

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
HMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
TECH. STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
HMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
TECH. OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
HMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOILER ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
106

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
HMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
RATED DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
PT-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PT-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PT-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PT-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PT-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PT-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PT-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PT-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PT-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
YES

AutoCAD SHX Text
YES

AutoCAD SHX Text
YES



p
r
o

d
u

c
t

architecture + design

811 w. evergreen ave.
suite 405

chicago,il 60642

ph: (312) 202-0701
fax: (866) 857-7265

d
e
s
c
r
i
p
t
i
o
n

i
s
s
u
e
 
d
a
t
e

s
t
a
m
p
:

Northbrook Public Library

1201 Ceder Ln.
Northbrook, Il 60062

drawing:project:

p
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
n
u
m
b
e
r
:

1
8
0
8

d
r
a
w
i
n
g
 
s
c
a
l
e
:

1
'
-
0
"
=
x
x
x

d
r
a
w
n
 
b
y
:

M
B
R

d
a
t
e
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
:

-

sheet num
ber:sheet

of

a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
b
y
:

T
L
N

p
l
a

n
:
 
n

e
w

s
c
a

l
e

:
 
1

/
8

"
=

1
'
-
0

"

1

new plans, elevations, wall types

r
e

f
l
e

c
t
e

d
 
c
e

i
l
i
n

g
 
p

l
a

n
:
 
n

e
w

s
c
a

l
e

:
 
1

/
8

"
=

1
'
-
0

"

2

A2.0
f
u

r
n

i
t
u

r
e

 
p

l
a

n
:
 
n

e
w

s
c
a

l
e

:
 
1

/
8

"
=

1
'
-
0

"

3

i
n

t
e

r
i
o

r
 
e

l
e

v
a

t
i
o

n
:
 
t
e

c
h

 
s
e

r
v
i
c
e

s
 
o

f
f
i
c
e

 
a

n
d

 
s
t
o

r
a

g
e

s
c
a

l
e

:
 
1

/
4

"
=

1
'
-
0

"

4

w
a

l
l
 
t
y
p

e
 
1

:
 
t
y
p

i
c
a

l
 
w

a
l
l

s
c
a

l
e

:
 
1

"
=

1
'
-
0

"

5

w
a

l
l
 
t
y
p

e
 
1

B
:
 
t
y
p
i
c
a

l
 
w

a
l
l
 
/
w

i
n

d
o

w

s
c
a

l
e

:
 
1

"
=

1
'
-
0

"

6

d
e

t
a

i
l
:
 
s
o

f
f
i
t

s
c
a

l
e

:
 
1

"
=

1
'
-
0

"

7

Page 104 of 145

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEC

AutoCAD SHX Text
BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATCH, PRIME, SAND & PAINT WALLS.(PT-X)TYP. ALL WALLS THIS AREA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATCH, PRIME, SAND & PAINT WALLS.(PT-X)TYP. ALL WALLS THIS AREA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATCH, PRIME, SAND & PAINT WALLS.(PT-X)TYP. ALL WALLS THIS AREA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW CPT (CPT-1) AND VINYL BASE (VB-1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW CPT CPT-1 AND VINYL BASE (VB-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATCH AND REPAIR CONCRETE AS NECESSARY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW VCT FLOORING (VCT-1) & VINYL BASE (VB-1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
103

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
101

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW SHOP SINK AND FAUCET (SK-1) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
A2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATCH, PRIME, SAND & PAINT WALLS.(PT-X)TYP. ALL WALLS THIS AREA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text
RELOCATED FIRE PULL. SEE ELECTRICAL PLANS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW FRP BEHIND SINK (48"X48") 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
101

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAINTENANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
103

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECEIVING/ TECH SERVICES

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
TECH. STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
TECH. OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOILER ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
106

AutoCAD SHX Text
106

AutoCAD SHX Text
1B

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW SPRAY BOOTH WITH VENT TO EXTERIOR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW CPT CPT-1 AND VINYL BASE (VB-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW CPT CPT-1 AND VINYL BASE (VB-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ACT CEILING  @ 8'-11" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW POWER REELS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREATE NEW SOFFIT AT LOCTATION OF DEMOLISHED WALLL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
REINSTALL GRID & SALVAGED CEILING TILE ONCE NEW WALLS HAVE BEEN CONSTRUCTED 

AutoCAD SHX Text
REINSTALL GRID & SALVAGED CEILING TILE ONCE NEW WALLS HAVE BEEN CONSTRUCTED 

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
101

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAINTENANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
103

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECEIVING/ TECH SERVICES

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
TECH. STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
TECH. OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
101

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAINTENANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
103

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECEIVING/ TECH SERVICES

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
TECH. STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
TECH. OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEC

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEC

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CABINETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPRAY BOOTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
5x6 	WORKBENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINK

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILES UNDER TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOBILE TABLE WITH MOBILE MESH DRAWERS UNDERNEATH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRINTERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
101

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAINTENANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
103

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECEIVING/ TECH SERVICES

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
TECH. STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
TECH. OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW HMF, WOOD DOOR W/ 1/4" GLAZING (GL-1)  

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW HMF & WOOD DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW HMF WINDOW W/ 1/4"" TEMPERED GLASS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VB-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH KEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4" TEMPERED GLASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PT-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
PT-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
VB-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
CPT-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERFACE EVENSONG - SNOW MOON, MIDNIGHT MOON 105333

AutoCAD SHX Text
VCT-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARMSTRONG STANDARD EXCELON W/ DIAMOND 1O TECHNOLOGY COATING - IMPERIAL TEXTURE - BLUE/GRAY 51903

AutoCAD SHX Text
GL-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISHED FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTINUOUS STEEL RUNNER; FASTEN TO CONCRETE SLAB

AutoCAD SHX Text
VINYL BASE (VB-1) TYP.  EACH SIDE U.N.O.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-5/8" STEEL STUDS, 20 GAUGE @ 16" OC U.N.O.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUND ATTENUATING  WALL INSULATION (IN-1)  U.N.O. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD EACH SIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'-11"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECK ABOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ACT CEILING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEFLECTION TRACK AND SEALANT. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" HOLLOW MTL. MULLION FRAME (PT-X)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" HOLLOW MTL. HEAD FRAME (PT-X)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-5/8" STL. STUD TRACK (JAMB TO JAMB) W/ WD BLOCKING AS REQ'D

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUND ATTENUATING  WALL INSULATION (IN-1) U.N.O. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISHED FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
VINYL BASE (VB-1) TYP.  EACH SIDE U.N.O.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-5/8" STEEL STUDS, 20 GAUGE @ 16" OC U.N.O.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD EACH SIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECK ABOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'-11"

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ACT CEILING

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" TEMPERED GLASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEFLECTION TRACK AND SEALANT. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE RCP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO STRUCTURE ABOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WALL CONSTRUCTION TO REMAIN: (1) LAYER 5/8" GYP BOARD OVER 3-5/8" MTL STUDS. SEE DEMO NOTES FOR MORE INFO.



Page 105 of 145



Page 106 of 145



architecture + design

811 w. evergreen ave.
suite 405

chicago,il 60642

ph: (312) 202-0701
fax: (866) 857-7265

1201 Ceder Ln.
Northbrook, Il 60062

BES

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
S

Y
S

T
E

M
S

, L
L

C
4

4
4

 N
. W

E
L

L
S

 S
T

R
E

E
T

S
U

IT
E

 4
0

1
C

H
IC

A
G

O
, IL

 6
0

6
5

4
T

 (3
12

) 8
3

6
-0

5
9

5
w

w
w

.b
e
se

n
g

r.c
o

m
M

E
C

H
A

N
IC

A
L

, E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
A

L
 P

L
U

M
B

IN
G

A
N

D
 F

IR
E

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IO

N
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

p
l
u
m

b
i
n
g
 
p
l
a
n
:
 
n
e
w

s
c
a
l
e
:
 
1
/
8
"
=

1
'
-
0
"

1

plumbing new plan

p1.0






























Page 107 of 145



 

 
 

Memorandum 
 

DATE: November 6, 2018  
 
TO: Board of Trustees  
  
FROM: Kate Hall, Executive Director  
 
RE: FY19 Per Capita Grant Requirements 
 
Each year there are certain requirements the board must fulfill related to the Per Capita 
Grant we apply for from the Illinois State Library.  This year, there are three requirements: 
 

1. The Library Director and the Board of Trustees shall review and report on progress in 

 

2. Review chapters 6-10 of t

 

3. Library staff and at least one trustee completed an educational program in calendar 
year 2018 that focused on meeting the needs the patrons with challenges or 
disabilities. The requirement could have been met via live presentation, webinar or 
free online courses. 

 
Attached in your packet is Chapter 8 from Serving Our Public.  Also included are Chapters 6-
10 from the Trustee Facts File.  Please read them in advance of the meeting so that we may 
discuss.   
 
We also need at least one trustee to attend training focused on patrons with challenges or 
disabilities.  
 
Training Options 
Library Accessibility: What Public Library Trustees Need To Know 
Webinar on Monday, December 10 from 9:30-10:30am 
 
Accessible to All: Serving Youth and Young Adults with Disabilities 
https://www.railslibraries.info/events/131043  

Page 108 of 145

https://www.railslibraries.info/events/131043


 
JJ's List Disability Awareness Training 
https://www.railslibraries.info/events/152890  
 
 
Creating a Friendly Environment for English Language Learners 
https://www.railslibraries.info/events/138681  
 
Be a Talking Book Ambassador: Learn How Talking Books Can Benefit Your Community 
https://www.railslibraries.info/events/138305  
 

After reviewing Chapter 8 from Serving Our Public 3.0, I have completed the checklists 

below.  We follow all the core competencies.  

 

REFERENCE SERVICES CHECKLIST  

YES All basic services are available when the library is open.  

YES  The library has a reference service policy.  

YES  The library provides staff trained in reference services to meet the needs of patrons 
who have challenges with disabilities, language, and literacy.  

YES  The library participates in interlibrary loan and resource sharing to help provide 
accurate and timely reference service.  

YES  The library is aware of the importance of accuracy in reference service and relies on 
information sources of demonstrated currency and authority.  

YES  The library supports training in the use of technologies necessary to access electronic 
resources, including training for persons with disabilities in the use of adaptive equipment 
and software.  

YES  The library provides easy access to accurate and up-to-date community information.  

YES  The library provides current issues of at least one community or local newspaper and 
retains hard copy or online back issues for a minimum of six months.  

YES  The library provides access to local ordinances or codes of all municipalities within its 
service boundaries.  

YES  The library provides access to local and state maps.  

YES  The library provides access to the minutes of local government meetings. These include 
but are not limited to municipal (village, township, or city) and school board meetings.  

YES  The library provides voter information, including precinct boundaries and location of 
polling places.  

YES  The library provides information about local history and events.  

YES  The library has telephone books for the local calling area and any other frequently 
requested areas.  

YES  The library has at least one current reference resource for each subject area.  

Page 109 of 145

https://www.railslibraries.info/events/152890
https://www.railslibraries.info/events/138681
https://www.railslibraries.info/events/138305


YES  Staff has access to a telephone or computer to receive and respond to requests for 
information and materials and to contact other agencies for information.  

YES  Staff members are encouraged to attend at least one relevant continuing education 
event each year.  

YES  The library evaluates its reference service on an annual basis.  

 

 

 

 

YES  All basic services are available when the library is open.  

YES  The library has competently trained staff that has thorough knowledge of popular 
authors and titles.  

YES  The library maintains a well-rounded collection of both fiction and nonfiction titles.  

YES   

YES  The library promotes the importance of leisure reading to its community members.  

YES  The library participates in interlibrary loan and resource sharing to help provide 
accurate and timely reference service.  

YES   

YES  All staff members attend at least one relevant continuing education event each year.  

YES  
least one community organization, club, or council.  

YES   services in their library attend 
at least one workshop, reading roundtable, or continuing education event.  

YES  quests received via e-mail, IM 
(instant messaging), texting, and/or virtual reference. 
   
 

Page 110 of 145



 30 

Through public services, a library offers assistance to patrons in the use of its collections and resources. The library also provides 
patrons with resources beyond those owned by the library through interlibrary loan and other resource-sharing arrangements.  
Basic public services include reference and reader’s advisory. These services should be provided to all age groups.

APPLICABLE CORE STANDARDS – Please see Core Standards 1, 11, 16, 17, 18, 19, 22, and 24 in Chapter 1.

REFERENCE SERVICES

Reference service is the provision of information in response to a patron’s question. All Illinois public libraries should provide  
reference service for their patrons.

REFERENCE SERVICES STANDARDS

1. All basic services are available when the library is open. For the purpose of this document, basic services are circulation,  
reference, reader’s advisory, and computer/Internet access.

2. The library has a board-approved reference service policy developed by reference staff and administration and it is reviewed 
biennially. (See Appendix R)

3. The library provides staff trained in reference services to meet the needs of patrons who have challenges with disabilities,  
language, and literacy.

4. The library participates in interlibrary loan and resource sharing to help provide accurate and timely reference service.

5. The library is aware of the importance of accuracy in reference service and relies on information sources of demonstrated  
currency and authority.

6. The library supports training in the use of technologies necessary to access electronic resources, including training for persons 
with disabilities in the use of adaptive equipment and software.

7. The library provides easy access to accurate and up-to-date community information/resource files.

8. The library provides current issues of at least one community or local newspaper and retains hard copy or online back issues  
for a minimum of six months.

9. The library provides access to local ordinances or codes of all municipalities within its service boundaries.

10. The library provides access to local and state maps.

11. The library strives to provide access to the minutes of local government meetings. These include but are not limited to municipal 
(village, township, or city) and school board meetings.

12. The library provides voter information, including precinct boundaries and location of polling places.

13. The library provides information about local history and events.

14. The library has telephone books for the local calling area and any other frequently requested areas.

15. The library will include at least one current reference resource for each subject area. Electronic resources may fulfill this requirement. 
(See Appendix T)

16. Staff has access to a telephone or computer to receive and respond to requests for information and materials and to contact other 
agencies for information.

17. Staff members are encouraged to attend at least one relevant continuing education event each year.

18. The library accepts and responds to reference requests received in all formats, including electronic, print, and phone. 

19. The library annually evaluates its reference service for accuracy, timeliness, staff friendliness, and patron ease. (See Appendix S)

Chapter 8 [Public Services: Reference and Reader’s Advisory Services]

Page 111 of 145



 31 

REFERENCE SERVICES CHECKLIST

q All basic services are available when the library is open.

q The library has a reference service policy.

q The library provides staff trained in reference services to meet the needs of patrons who have challenges with disabilities,  
language, and literacy.

q The library participates in interlibrary loan and resource sharing to help provide accurate and timely reference service.

q The library is aware of the importance of accuracy in reference service and relies on information sources of demonstrated  
currency and authority.

q The library supports training in the use of technologies necessary to access electronic resources, including training for persons 
with disabilities in the use of adaptive equipment and software.

q The library provides easy access to accurate and up-to-date community information.

q The library provides current issues of at least one community or local newspaper and retains hard copy or online back issues  
for a minimum of six months.

q The library provides access to local ordinances or codes of all municipalities within its service boundaries.

q The library provides access to local and state maps.

q The library provides access to the minutes of local government meetings. These include but are not limited to municipal  
(village, township, or city) and school board meetings.

q The library provides voter information, including precinct boundaries and location of polling places.

q The library provides information about local history and events.

q The library has telephone books for the local calling area and any other frequently requested areas.

q The library has at least one current reference resource for each subject area.

q Staff has access to a telephone or computer to receive and respond to requests for information and materials and to contact  
other agencies for information.

q Staff members are encouraged to attend at least one relevant continuing education event each year.

q The library evaluates its reference service on an annual basis.

BIBLIOGRAPHY  

Cassell, Kay Ann and Uma Hiremath. Reference and Information Services in the 21st Century: An Introduction. 2nd ed. New York: 
Neal-Schuman, 2011.

Eberhart, George. Whole Library Handbook 5: Current Data, Professional Advice, and Curiosa About Libraries and Library Services. 
Chicago: American Library Association, 2011.

Johnson, Peggy. Fundamentals of Collection Development and Management. 2nd ed. Chicago: American Library Association, 2009.

Kresh, Diane. The Whole Digital Library Handbook. Chicago: American Library Association, 2007.

O’Gorman, Jack, ed. Reference Sources for Small and Medium-sized Libraries. 7th ed. Chicago: American Library Association, 2008.

Thomsett-Scott, Beth C., ed. Implementing Virtual Reference. Chicago: American Library Association, 2013. 

Chapter 8 [Public Services: Reference and Reader’s Advisory Services]

Page 112 of 145



 32 

READER’S ADVISORY SERVICES

Reader’s Advisory Services is a patron-oriented service that promotes and encourages recreational reading. It is a service that offers 
advice, suggestions, recommendations, and selections to library users regarding authors, titles, and genres. It is a service that strives 
to respond to the recreational reading tastes of individual readers using the resources of the library to link readers and books.

All Illinois public libraries should provide some sort of reader’s advisory service to their patrons. This can be done formally with  
a separate designated service desk, through conversation with a librarian, or informally at the library’s circulation desk where  
library staff members get to know the library patron’s reading preferences and are able to suggest similar titles that the patron might 
enjoy reading.

READER’S ADVISORY STANDARDS

1. All basic services are available when the library is open. For the purposes of this document, basic services are circulation and 
reference and reader’s advisory services. If reference and reader’s advisory services are provided to children and adults from two 
separate points, then the library provides adequate staffing at both locations at all hours the library is open.

2. The library has competently trained staff that has thorough knowledge of popular authors and titles.

3. The library participates in interlibrary loan and resource sharing to help provide accurate and timely reader’s advisory service.

4. The library is aware of the importance of accuracy in reader’s advisory service and relies on information sources of demonstrated 
currency and authority.

5. Staff has access to a telephone or computer to receive and respond to requests for information and materials and to contact other 
agencies for information.

6. Staff members who are responsible for reader’s advisory services in their library should attempt to stay current with community 
events by participating in community organizations, clubs, or councils.

7. Staff members who are responsible for reader’s advisory services in their library should attempt to attend as many workshops, 
reading roundtables, or continuing education events as possible to stay current.

8. The library accepts and responds to reader’s advisory requests received via e-mail, IM (instant messaging), texting, and/or  
virtual reference.

READER’S ADVISORY SERVICES CHECKLIST

q All basic services are available when the library is open.

q The library has competently trained staff that has thorough knowledge of popular authors and titles.

q The library maintains a well-rounded collection of both fiction and nonfiction titles.

q The library has a reader’s advisory services policy.

q The library promotes the importance of leisure reading to its community members.

q The library participates in interlibrary loan and resource sharing to help provide accurate and timely reference service.

q The library maintains a basic collection of reader’s advisory reference materials.

q All staff members attend at least one relevant continuing education event each year.

q Staff members who are responsible for reader’s advisory services in their library join at least one community organization,  
club, or council.

q Staff members who are responsible for reader’s advisory services in their library attend at least one workshop, reading  
roundtable, or continuing education event.

q The library accepts and responds to reader’s advisory requests received via e-mail, IM (instant messaging), texting, and/or  
virtual reference.

Chapter 8 [Public Services: Reference and Reader’s Advisory Services]

Page 113 of 145



 33 

BIBLIOGRAPHY   

Avila, Salvador. Serving Latino Teens. Westport, CT: Libraries Unlimited, 2012. 

Booth, Heather. Serving Teens Through Readers’ Advisory (ALA Reader’s Advisory Series). Chicago: American Library Association, 2007.

Hysell, Shannon Graff. Recommended Reference Books for Small and Medium-Sized Libraries and Media Centers. Westport, CT: 
Libraries Unlimited, 2013. 

Moyer, Jessica E., ed. The Readers’ Advisory Handbook. Chicago: American Library Association, 2010.

Okobi, Elsie A. Rogers Halliday. Library Services for Adults in the 21st Century. Westport, CT: Libraries Unlimited, 2013.

Orr, Cynthia and Diana Tixier Herald. Genreflecting: A Guide to Popular Reading Interests. 7th ed. Westport, CT: Libraries  
Unlimited, 2013.

Pandora, Cherie P. and Stacey Hayman. Better Serving Teens Through School Library-Public Library Collaborations. Westport, CT: 
Libraries Unlimited, 2013.

Peck, Penny. Readers’ Advisory for Children and ’Tweens. Westport, CT: Libraries Unlimited, 2010.

Roberts, Ann and Stephanie G. Bauman. Crash Course in Library Services for Seniors. Westport, CT: Libraries Unlimited, 2012.

Saricks, Joyce. Reader’s Advisory Guide to Genre Fiction. Chicago: American Library Association, 2009.

Zabel, Diane. Reference Reborn: Breathing New Life into Public Services Librarianship. Westport, CT: Libraries Unlimited, 2010.

WEBSITES

NoveList Plus – EBSCO 
www.ebscohost.com/novelist/our-products/novelist-plus

The Reader’s Advisory Online – Libraries Unlimited 
rainfo.lu.com/

Chapter 8 [Public Services: Reference and Reader’s Advisory Services]

Page 114 of 145



Page 115 of 145



Page 116 of 145



Page 117 of 145



Page 118 of 145



Page 119 of 145



Page 120 of 145



Page 121 of 145



Page 122 of 145



Page 123 of 145



Page 124 of 145



Page 125 of 145



Page 126 of 145



Page 127 of 145



Page 128 of 145



Page 129 of 145



Page 130 of 145



Page 131 of 145



Page 132 of 145



Page 133 of 145



Page 134 of 145



Page 135 of 145



Page 136 of 145



Page 137 of 145



Page 138 of 145



Page 139 of 145



Page 140 of 145



Page 141 of 145



 
 

Memorandum 
 

DATE: October 22, 2018  
 
TO: Board of Trustees  
  
FROM: Kate Hall, Executive Director  
 
RE: Public Code of Behavior Policy Update 
 

I am requesting that the board change the Public Code of Behavior Policy to allow 

food to be enjoyed at the designated tables in the Youth Services department and in 

the Teen Loft. 

We often get requests from patrons in Youth Services wishing to consume small snacks.  

After talking to other libraries in the area, we determined that almost all of the libraries 

allow small snacks in the Youth Services and/or Teen areas. The ones that did not allow 

it were considering changing the policy. 

To test whether this would be problematic or not here, we did a small test at two 

tables in the Youth Services section over 3 months.  We tracked issues and asked the 

cleaning company to wipe down tables additional times throughout the day as part of 

their general housekeeping tasks.  What we found is that patrons genuinely appreciate 

having this area and are respectful of the space.  They clean up after themselves and 

eat only in the designated area.   

I feel that this would be an added benefit to creating a welcoming environment for our 

patrons.     

Page 142 of 145



Public Code of Behavior.  The Northbrook Public Library welcomes all residents and 
visitors and is dedicated to free and equal access to information, knowledge, and 
independent learning for our diverse community.  

 
The Library seeks to provide its patrons, staff, and volunteers with a safe and pleasant 
library experience in an atmosphere conducive to connecting, studying, reading, 
creating, and learning. The Library recognizes its unique position and responsibility to 
educate, inform, and enlighten the community through free resources, programs, and 
services that enable everyone to participate fully in our democratic society as 
members of a knowledgeable and educated citizenry.  
 
With public service as the highest priority, the Board of Trustees of the Northbrook 
Public Library has established the rules and regulations governing use of the Library, 
such that all persons may enjoy its benefits.  All Library patrons can expect to: 

• Receive courteous service, 
• Be treated fairly and equitably by all Library staff, 
• Contact staff for reference, readers advisory, and information services, 
• Have questions, comments and concerns addressed in a timely manner, 
• Suggest new materials, programs and services, 
• Have staff make the library operate in the best interest of the tax payers, and  
• Have a safe, clean, and comfortable building. 

 

following Public Code of Behavior. The Northbrook Public Library will uphold all 
federal, state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances in regard to public 
behavior. 
 

Patrons shall be engaged in activities associated with the use of a public library while 

in the building. 

Patrons may not interfere with the use of the Library by other patrons or  interfere 

with staff performance of their duties. Interference includes, but is not limited to: 

Use of loud, abusive, threatening or insulting language or behavior including 
language or behavior that offends, threatens, or insults groups or individuals, 
based on race, color, religion, national origin, sexual orientation, disability, or 
other traits, Inebriation, activities or behavior that may result in injury or harm to 
any library patron or staff member, including challenging another person to 
fight or engage in any fight and Photographing Library users, volunteers or staff 
without prior permission of the Executive Director. 

 
 

1. Patrons may not sexually harass other patrons or staff. Harassment includes: 

a. making inappropriate personal comments or sexual advances;  
b. using obscene or lewd language or gestures;  

Page 143 of 145



c. staring at, or following, a patron, volunteer, or staff in a manner that 
reasonably can be expected to disturb him or her,  

d. and exposing others to sexual Internet content (more information on 
Internet usage can be found in the Internet Policy). 

2. Solicitation is not allowed on Library property. This includes selling, begging, 

or circulating petitions among patrons, volunteers or staff members , except as 

otherwise allowed by law 

3. Patrons may consume food in the Café area on the first floor, at the 

designated tables in the Youth Services Department, and in the Teen Loft.  

Covered beverages may be enjoyed throughout the Library, unless otherwise 

indicated. 

4. Bringing pets or animals, other than service animals necessary for disabilities, 

into the Library is not allowed, except as authorized by the Executive Director 

for special programming purposes. 

5. Shirts and shoes are required for health reasons and must be worn at all times. 

6. Patrons whose bodily hygiene is so offensive as to constitute a nuisance to 

other persons shall be required to leave the building and may return when the 

problem has been corrected. Offensive body odor, poor personal hygiene, 

overpowering perfume or cologne may require a patron to leave the building 

until such a time as the condition can become resolved. 

7. Use of skateboards, roller blades or roller-skates is not allowed in the Library or 

on Library property.   

8. The use of incendiary devices, such as candles, matches or lighters are 

prohibited on Library grounds. Smoking is not permitted within the Library or 

within 25 feet of any public entrance. 

9. Any other behavior which could reasonably be expected to disturb other users 

or interfere with the Library staff performance of their duties is prohibited. 

10. While the Library encourages use by everyone, it cannot assume responsibility 

for the care and supervision of any patrons who are disabled or impaired to 

the extent that they cannot independently follow Library rules or be safe 

without a caregiver. Patrons who require personal supervision or assistance 

must provide this care themselves. In the event that a patron in the Library 

requires such care and is without it, the Library may contact social services or 

the police. 

 

The above enumerated rules are not intended to be a complete list of violations, but 
are intended for guidance only. Library staff and/or local law enforcement officers are 
authorized to expel persons who, advised of the regulations above, fail to comply with 

Page 144 of 145



them. Such personnel also reserve the right to take appropriate action(s) against any 
other behavior which can reasonably be deemed to be offensive to library patrons or 
staff. Enforcement of these rules will be conducted in a fair and reasonable manner. 
Library staff designated by the Director may temporarily suspend patron privileges for 
up to 24 hours, including restricting access to the Library property, services or 
programs for patrons who violate the public code of behavior. Unlawful activities will 
be reported immediately to the police.  
 

Page 145 of 145


	Agenda 11.15.18
	6.1 Cash Balances & Income Statement
	6.2 Bills & Charges
	7 Foundation
	9 Director's Report 11.15.18
	11.1 a Cabling Project 2018 Board Memo
	11.1 b Cabling Project NPL -Bid -OSG - Letter
	11.1 c Cabling Project Bid Tabulation Final
	11.1 d Cabling Project 2018 NOCB  - Low Voltage Solutions, Inc Bid
	Bid Form
	Notice of Cable Bid

	Bid Bond
	CNA Surety

	RCDD Certificate
	Company Profile
	Overview & Ref

	Sample COI

	11.2a Technical Services & Maintenance Remodel Update
	11.2b Techincal Services and Maintenance Remodel Cost Estimate
	11.2c Technical Services & Maintenance Remodel Timeline
	11.2d Technical Services & Maintenance Remodel Drawings
	11.3a FY19 Per Capita Grant Memo
	11.3b Serving Our Public 3.0 Chapter 8
	11.3c Trustee Facts File Ch 6-10
	11.4 Public Code of Behavior Policy Update
	11.5a 4 20 17 Executive Session Minutes
	11.5b 05 17 18 Executive Session Minutes
	MINUTES FOR AN EXECUTIVE MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE NORTHBROOK PUBLIC LIBRARY
	I. Call to Order/Roll Call
	II. Summary of the nature of the matter considered.
	Executive Director Annual Review
	III. Adjournment
	Roll Call Vote:
	Time the executive session adjourned:  8:21 pm

	8:05 pm
	Time meeting started
	5/17/18
	Date of executive meeting
	8:21 pm
	Time meeting adjourned
	Date minutes approved
	Recording Destroyed by
	12/19
	19 month review date
	Northbrook Public Library
	Meeting Location
	Northbrook Civic Foundation Room
	1201 Cedar Lane
	Northbrook, IL 60062




